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1 Agenda of the Congress.
Regulations on organization and operation of the 2025 Annual General

2 Meeting of Shareholders

3 Report on the 2025 Business Plan
Report on approval of the audited 2024 financial statements (parent company

4 and consolidated).

5 Report of the Board of Directors

6 Report of the Supervisory Board

7 Report on the 2024 profit distribution plan;
Report on the finalization of remuneration of the Board of Directors and the

8 Supervisory Board in 2024 and the remuneration plan for 2025

0 Report on the selection of an auditor for 2025
Report on the approval of the main contents in the draft of construction .
contracts between Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company and Song Da Corporation

10 or related persons of Song Da Corporation with a value greater than 35% of the
total asset value of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company recorded in the latest
financial report

11 Draft Resolution of the General Meeting

12 Authorization form/Attendance confirmation

13 Voting card
Voting ballot
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1. Tifﬂé"(l‘éx‘gé’cted): 8:00 a.m., Thursday, June 26, 2025.

9. Location: 11th floor, area B, Song Da Corp

My Dinh 1 ward, Nam Tu Iiem district, Hanoi city.

3. Meeting Program

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom — Happiness

NNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

oration building, Pham Hung street,

Order Contents Time Implementation
Checking the implementation of the
I registration of the right to attend the 8h00 -:- 8h30°
Congress. - .
e I e S rganizing
1. State the reason. Committee
I 2. Invite the Presidium, which are the 8h30°
current members of the Board of Directors,
to preside over the Congress.
[I1 | Contents presented to the Congress
1 Appro.ve the content and agenda of the 8h30°- 8h35°
Congress.
2 | Approve the Working Regulations. 8h35’ - 8h45’ Presidium
Appoint the Secretariat; the Board of
3 Shareholders' Qualifications; elect the Vote | 8h45’ - 8h50°
Counting Board.
Shareholder Qualifications Assessment Shareholder
4 Report 8h50° - 9h00’ Qualification
pott. Review Board [|+
L e et T — e [ )
5 E.’lese'nt. and explain the submissions and 9h00° - 10h00° Presidium
reports:
5.1 {2025 Business Plan; Mr. Phuong
5.2 | Audited 2024 Financial Report; Mr. T. Anh
5.3 | Board of Directors' Report; Mr. Linh
5.4 | Board of Supervisors' Report; Boa?d. Of_
Supervisors
5.5 | Expected 2024 Profit Distribution; Mr. Phuong
56 Board Of. ]?u‘elctors and Supervisory Board's Mr. T. Anh
Remuneration;
5.7 | Selecting an auditor for 2025. Boa'rd' Of.
Supervisors
Submission on approval of main content of
draft construction contract between Song Da
10 Joint Stock Company and Song Da
5.8 | Corporation with value greater than 35% of Mr. Phuong
total asset value of Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company recorded in the most recent financial
report




The congress discussed, voted and voted on

K]jpr(;ﬂ of the lli;di;é minutes Va:dilr'a?t'i

Order Contents
6 ; A
the issues raised.
7 Break
8 Approval of the vote counting results.
2 Resolution of the Congress.
IV | Closing the Meeting.

10h00> - 10h30°

11h00’ - 11h15°

11h15° - 11h30°

Presidium

Presidium

Time Implementation
| ]

Counting

Presidium and

Secrefary
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SONG DA 10 JOINT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Hanoi, ... oo e 2025

REGULATIONS

ORGANIZATION - ACTIVITIES OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Based on:
Based on the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities;

Based on the Charter of the organization and operation of Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company,

Based on the Internal Regulations on corporate governance of Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company;

Based on the Notice of invitation to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of the Board of Directors of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company.

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company
is organized and implemented according to the following contents.

CHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
Article 1: Scope of application
1.1 These regulations apply to the organization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders (hereinafter referred to as the "General Meeting") of Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company.

1.2 These regulations specifically stipulate the rights and obligations of shareholders

and parties attending the General Meeting, conditions and procedures for conducting the
General Meeting.

Article 2: Subjects of application

Shareholders, persons authorized by shareholders to attend the General Meeting and

parties participating in the General Meeting are responsible for complying with the provisions
of these regulations.

CHAPTER 11

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS, AUTHORITIES AND
PARTIES ATTENDING THE GENERAL MEETING

Article 3: Rights and obligations of sharcholders or authorized persons
3.1. Conditions for attending the General Meeting

Being a sharcholder or an authorized representative of a shareholder whose name is on
the list of shareholders of the Company issued by the Securities Depository Center on the
closing date of the List of Shareholders attending the General Meeting.

3.2. Rights of shareholders when attending the General Meeting

a. To attend or authorize to attend the General Meeting in writing according to the form.

b. To discuss and vote on all matters within the authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders according to the provisions of the Enterprise Law, the Company Charter and
relevant current legal provisions;




¢. The Organizing Committee shall notify the content, agenda of the General Meeting
and accompanying documents;

d. Each shareholder or authorized person attending the General Meeting shall receive a
Voting Card, Voting Form and other documents after registering to attend the General
Meeting with the Shareholders' Qualification Examination Board;

e. Shareholders and authorized persons who arrive late to the General Meeting before
the end of the General Meeting have the right to register and participate in voting at the
General Meeting immediately after registering for issues not yet voted on, but the Chairman
is not responsible for stopping the General Meeting for them to register and the validity of the
voting session that has been conducted will not be affected.

3.3. Obligations of shareholders when attending the General Meeting

a. Shareholders or authorized persons must bring the following documents when
attending the General Meeting:

- For individual shareholders: Meeting invitation, ID card/CCCD/Passport (original)
with valid term, Authorization letter (according to form) if they are authorized;

- For institutional shareholders: Meeting invitation, Copy of Business Registration
Certificate (validly certified), ID card/CCCD/Passport (original) of the legal representative.

In case the legal representative authorizes another person to attend the General Meeting,
the authorized person must bring: 1D card/CCCD/Passport (original) with valid term of use

of the authorized person; Copy of Business Registration Certificate (validly certified);
Authorization letter (according to form).

b. During the General Meeting, shareholders must comply with the instructions of the

Presidium, behave in a civilized and polite manner, not cause disorder, not smoke in the

General Meeting room; do not use mobile phones during the General Meeting. Mobile phones
must be turned off or not set to ring;

¢. Do not record, videotape and transmit information about the meeting content to the
outside before the official conclusion of the General Meeting;

d. Speak and vote in accordance with the instructions of the Organizing Committee of
the Congress and respect the direction of the Congress by the Presidium;
e. Strictly comply with this Regulation, respect the results of the work at the Congress.

Article 4: Rights and obligations of the Sharcholders' Qualification Examination
Committee

The Shareholders' Qualification Examination Committee of the Congress consists of 02
people established by the Board of Directors, with the following functions and tasks:

4.1 Check the qualifications of shareholders or authorized representatives attending the
meeting;

4.2 Issue to sharcholders or authorized representatives attending the meeting: Voting
cards, Voting ballots and other relevant meeting documents;

4.3 Report to the Congress on the results of checking the qualifications of shareholders

or authorized representatives attending the Congress before the Congress officially takes
place.

Article 5: Rights and obligations of the Presidium and the Secretary/Secretariat
of the General Meeting

5.1 Presidium




a. The Presidium consists of 05 members who are members of the current Board of
Ditectors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is the Chairman of the Presidium and
the person who chairs the General Meeting of Shareholders (Chair), with the following
functions and duties:

- Directing the activities of the General Meeting according to the program approved
by the General Meeting. Carrying out necessary tasks for the General Meeting of
Shareholders to take place in an orderly manner;

_ Guiding shareholders and the General Meeting to discuss the contents of the
program;

- Submitting drafts and conclusions on necessary issues for the General Meeting to
vote;

- Responding to issues requested by the General Meeting;

- Resolving issues arising during the General Meeting.

b. The decision of the Presidium on issues of order, procedures or events arising
outside the program of the General Meeting shall be of the highest judgment.

c. The Chairman has the right to request the competent authority to maintain order
in the meeting; expel those who do not comply with the Chairman's authority, intentionally

disrupt order, or prevent the normal progress of the meeting from the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

d. The Chairman has the right to postpone the General Meeting to another time or
change the meeting location if he/she finds that:

- There are attendees who obstruct or disrupt order, causing a risk of making the
meeting not be conducted fairly and legally.

- The meeting location does not have enough convenient seats for all attendees. - The

maximum postponement time is no more than 03 days from the date the meeting is
scheduled to open.

e. The Presidium works on the principle of collective action and makes decisions by
majority vote.

5.2 Secretary/Secretariat of the General Meeting

- The Secretary/Secretariat of the General Meeting consists of 02 people appointed
by the General Meeting Chairman, responsible to the Presidium, the General Meeting of
Shareholders for their duties and under the direction of the Presidium.

_ The Secretary/Secretariat of the General Meeting has the following duties:

+ Fully and honestly record the entire content of the General Meeting and the issues
approved by the shareholders/shareholder representatives or noted at the General Meeting.

+ Draft the General Meeting Resolution and the Resolutions on the issues approved
at the General Meeting (if any).

+ Other duties as assigned by the Presidium.
Article 6: Rights and obligations of the Ballot Counting Committee

6.1 The Ballot Counting Committee of the General Meeting consists of 03 people
introduced by the Presidium and approved by the General Meeting.

6.2 The Ballot Counting Committee has the following duties:

3




- Provide guidance on the voting procedures;
- Supervise the voting of shareholders and authorized representatives of shareholders

attending the General Meeting;

- Conduct vote counting, prepare the vote counting minutes;
6.3 The Head of the Vote Counting Committee reports to the General Meeting on the

vote counting results.
6.4 The Vote Counting Committee is responsible for the accuracy and honesty of the

announced vote counting results.
CHAPTER III

CONDUCTING THE GENERAL MEETING

Article 7: Conditions for holding the General Meeting
The General Meeting is held when the number of shareholders/authorized
representatives of shareholders attending the meeting represents more than 50% of the
total number of votes according to the Company's List of Shareholders established on the

closing date of the List of Shareholders attending the General Meeting.

Article 8: Discussion at the General Meeting

8.1 Principles:
ed, clarified, and registered

_ Shareholders who have opinions that need to be discuss
General Meeting Secretariat for transfer to the

on the Questionnaire are transferred to the
ducted within the prescribed time and within

Presidium; - Discussions shall only be con
the scope of the issues presented in the Agenda of the General Meeting.

8.2 Responding to shareholders' questions
The Presidium or a member designated b

shareholders' questions.
Article 9: Voting procedures and approval of decisions at the General Meeting

Each shareholder is given a Voting Card, which is printed and stamped by the
Company for control. Voting at the General Meeting is carried out in the following

y the Presidium shall respond to

forms:
9.1 Direct voting by Voting Card
- Direct voting by Voting Card is applied to the following issues:

+ Approval of the Vote Counting Committee's personnel;
Mecting's Agenda, Regulations on organization and

+ Approval of the General
Resolutions of the General Meeting;

operation at the General Meeting, Minutes

+ Other issues as decided by the Presidium (if any).
_ When voting, under the direction of the Chairman, shareholders voting for,
against or having no opinion raise their Voting Cards in turn.

- For each vote, the membets of the Vote Counting Committee will mark the

shareholder code and the corresponding number of votes of each sharcholder, re
number of votes in favor, against, and no opinion to announce the vote counting results

before the General Meeting.
9.2 Voting by ballot

cord the



a. Voting ballots are used to collect votes on the following contents:

- 2025 production and business plan;

- Audited financial statements for 2024,

- Report of the Board of Directors;

- Report of the Supervisory Board;

- Expected profit distribution for 2024;

_ Finalization of remuneration for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board in
2024 and remuneration plan for 2025;

- Selection of the auditing unit for 2025;

b. Voting method:

The voting contents recorded in the Voting Form will be voted by
shareholders/authorized representatives of shareholders by selecting the option of

approving, disapproving or having no opinion on each content to be approved (marking
(X) or (V) on the voting content)

¢. Voting method:

- Voting begins when the Chairman of the meeting or the Head of the Vote
Counting Committee gives the signal and ends when the last shareholder puts his/her
vote in the ballot box or 30 minutes after the start of voting, whichever comes first. After

the end of voting, the ballot box will be sealed and shareholders who do not participate
in voting will be considered as having no opinion.

- In case a shareholder, during the voting process, writes a mistake on the Voting
Form, provided that it has not been put in the ballot box and the voting period has not
expired, he/she has the right to directly meet the Head of the Vote Counting Committee
to request a replacement of the Voting Form to ensure the shareholder's rights.

d. Method of counting votes:

- The counting of votes is carried out immediately after the end of voting.

- Method of counting votes:

+ The counting committee works in a separate room/area.

+ The counting committee uses clectronic technical means in counting votes.
+ Check the validity of the voting ballots.

+ Check each voting ballot in turn and record the counting results.

+ Calculate and remove the number of shares of related shareholders who ate not
entitled to vote (if any in each content to be voted).

+ Seal all voting ballots and hand them over to the Chairman.
- Invalid voting ballots:

+ Ballots that do not follow the form issued by the Organizing Committee or do not
have the Company's seal;

+ Ballots that are torn, erased, or modified;
+ Ballots with additional information or symbols;

+ If the ballot contains many different opinions for the same voting content, the
voting part for that content is invalid.




+ The ballot contains all invalid voting contents;

+ The voting for each content to be approved in the Voting Ballot is independent of
each other, the validity of the voting part of this content does not affect the validity of
other voting contents.

- After counting the votes, the Ballot Counting Committee must prepare the Ballot
Counting Minutes. The Ballot Counting Minutes must include:

+ Time and place of the vote counting.

+ Composition of the Ballot Counting Committee.

+ Total number of shareholders with voting rights attending the meeting.

+ Total number of shareholders with voting rights participating in the vote.

+ Number and percentage of valid and invalid votes.

+ Number and percentage of votes for each issue.

+ Signatures of the members of the Ballot Counting Committee.

Article 10: Approval of the Resolution of the General Meeting

10.1 The following issues shall be approved when approved by the number of
shareholders representing more than 50% of the total number of votes of all shareholders
attending the meeting:

- 2025 production and business plan;

- Audited financial statements for 2024;

- Report of the Board of Directors;

- Report of the Supervisory Board;

- Expected profit distribution for 2024;

_ Finalization of remuneration for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board in
2024 and the plan and remuneration for 2025;

- Selection of an auditing unit for 2025;

10.2 How to object/request to cancel the decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

Within 90 days from the date of announcement of the minutes of the General Meeting
of Shareholders, shareholders or groups of shareholders owning 5% or more of the total
number of common shares have the right to request the Court or Arbitration to review and
cancel the resolution or part of the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in
the following cases:

- The order and procedures for convening meetings and issuing resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders are not implemented in accordance with the provisions
of law and the Company's Charter, except in cases where the resolution or decisions of
the General Meeting of Shareholders are approved by 100% of the total number of shares
with voting rights.

- The content of the decision violates the law or the Company's Charter.

Article 11: Minutes of the General Meeting

7
“w S

4

N\




11.1 The content of the General Meeting is recorded in the Minutes. The Chairman

and Secretary are responsible for the accuracy and truthfulness of the Minutes of the
General Meeting,.

11.2 The minutes of the General Meeting must be announced before the General
Meeting and approved by the General Meeting before the closing of the General Meeting;

11.3 The minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be approved by the
General Meeting and must be disclosed in accordance with regulations.

11.4 The minutes of the General Meeting are the basis for issuing Resolutions of the
General Meeting,.

Article 12: Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Based on the results of the General Meeting, the Chairman issues Resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders on the issues approved by the General Meeting.
Resolutions of the General Meeting must be approved by the General Meeting and must
be disclosed in accordance with regulations.

Article 13: Document storage:

Resolutions, minutes and other documents of the General Meeting must be stored at
the Company.

CHAPTER 1V
IMPLEMENTATION PROVISIONS
Article 14: Effectiveness of the Regulations

This Regulation consists of 4 Chapters and 14 Articles, is read publicly before the

General Meeting and takes effect immediately after being voted and approved by the
General Meeting.

This Regulation may be amended at any time based on the proposal of the Chairman
of the General Meeting and must be voted and approved by the General Meeting.

—lef T

ON.BEHALF OF GENERAL
MQE‘TN@@T L. SHAREHOLDERS
’ Q{:{- IRMAN
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SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
No: 320/TB-SD10 Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Hanoi, April 02, 2025

PROPOSAL
2025 Business Plan
To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company
Based on the Law on Enterprises;
Based on the Charter of the Company's organization and operation;
Based on the Company's resources and actual situation, the Board of Directors
develops the 2025 business plan as follows
1. MAIN ECONOMIC INDICATORS

_ , Plan 2025 i
Order Indicators Unit
Total | Parent company
1 Total production and business value 106 VND | 1.100.399 905.030
1 Construction value 106 VND | 1.020.706 885.030
2 Production and business value other 106 VND 21.408 20.000

than construction

3 | Electricity business value 106 VND | 58285
" 11| Financial plan | 106 VND T
1 | Revenue C [1093865|  869.736
2 | Payment to the State |1 106 VND | 46.864 29.465
— 3 |Profitbeforetax | 106VND | 14476 | 10921
4 |Profitaferax | 106VND | S 11099 0 8413
5 |Rate 106 VND o
- Marginal profit (revenue/profit) 106 VND 1,32 2
- Profit after tax/Chartered capTalif_ 77777 % | 260 19T
(parent company)
“Profit after tax/Equity % _“7'_'1,29‘_('_7A—1,IT
6 | Equity % 779.242 782.104
7 Chartered capital (parent company) 106 VND | 427.324 427.324
8 Debt/Equity ratio 1106 VND | 1,8‘_'*'_**_'1,@

(with detailed Appendix attached)
II. Key tasks

1. Develop specific measures, organize and comprehensively implement plans,
ensure completion of the 2025 production and business plan.

2. Organize construction of works to ensure safety, on schedule, and quality
according to signed contracts, focusing on directing the construction of key works such
as Son Trieu Tunnel (North-South Expressway project); EA-Trang 1&2 Tunnel (North-
South Expressway project, Khanh Hoa - Buon Ma Thuot section); Deo Ngang Tunnel;

Hoa Binh - Moc Chau Expressway project and new projects expected to be bid in the
year.




3 Continue to review the organizational structure and operation of departments
and affiliated units to organize and arrange them in accordance with the unit's
orientation.

4. Regularly review regulations and rules to promptly amend and supplement them
to suit the production and business situation and in accordance with current legal
regulations.

5. Direct Nam He Hydropower Joint Stock Company fo organize the operation of
Nam He Hydropower Plant in accordance with procedures and regulations, ensuring
safety for equipment, people and construction works. Optimize the operation of
machinery and equipment, and at the same tine find all solutions to increase electricity
output, especially electricity generation during peak hours to achieve the highest outpuf
value, striving to complete the set plan.

6. Continue to consolidate and build a strong enough bidding team to participate in
marketing and bidding for projects.

7 Invest in motorbikes and construction equipment suitable to the actual needs and
capacity of the unit.

8. Pay full and timely salaries to employees. Balance tax and social insurance debt
payments to social insurance agencies to ensure the rights of employees;

9. Focus on capital collection and debt recovery, especially personal debt and debt
of organizations and partners who are investors that the unit directly participates in
bidding and wins bids.

10. Actively follow up and direct the implementation of acceptance and payment
work at projects under construction and final settlement of completed projects such as:
XKM3, Deo Ca tunnel, NamPhak, Yaly, Dak Mil hydropower plants...;

11. Arrange capital to repay principal and interest to banks according to schedule.
Do not let overdue debt or bad debt arise. Maintain and develop relationships with credit

institutions to ensure capital for the Company's production and business activities at the
lowest cost.

12. Review and resolve recommendations of the Internal Control Board of Song Da
Corporation, recommendations of competent State agencies (if any), and directive
documents of Song Da Corporation.

13. Continue to divest financial investment in Nam He Joint Stock Company
according to the Resolution approved by the Corporation.

4. Analyze the economic efficiency of projects implemented in the past, propose
solutions to completely resolve existing problems and difficulties in completed projects,
and draw lessons to resolve problems in projects under construction.

15. Maximize savings in production and managenient costs on the basis of:
checking and reviewing to re-calibrate the company's internal norms, building a daily
labor price suitable to the actual situation, determining personnel, rearranging the
organization, reducing the indirect labor force in accordance with the current production

and business situation of the unit, reducing costs of gasoline, electricity, water,
stationery, efc.




The above is the Company's 2025 production and business plan, respectfully
requesting the General Meeting of Shareholders to consider and approve./.

Recipients:
- As above;
- To the Secretary.

el

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
59055 CHAIRMAN
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Appendix No. 02
(attached to Submission No. /TTr-HDQT dated / /2025 of the Board of Directors of Song
Da 10 Joint Stock Company)

TET DETAILS OF PROJECTS

Order Project name Unit Plan 2025
A ’lI}‘;)ltzlllFlc g:ll::}c;:;);l and business value of the 10% 90 5030@0_
I Construction and installation value 10%d 885.030.000
1 Constructions with contracts 623.380.51 57
7? Son Trieu Tunnel Project 7 107361_ - 2&)49_91?1 1
1.2 | Deo Ngang Tunnel Project o 10%d 179 250 000
1.3 | Ea Trang 2 Tunnel Project 10%d 154.139.104
i 1.4 | Hoa Binh - Moc Chau Expr.essway Project 10°d 80. 000 000
) Projects expccted to be bid 10%d 3 - 261 647977485
I Xl‘;ltl;:[elgtl:(t)snldc of construction and 10%d 20.000.000
B Ezt;:lpl-‘:;;d{l()c,?o“ and business value of the 1% 137.084.000
I | Construction and installation value 103(1 135. 675 549
1| Constructions with contracts 1 10%a 94.309.600
1.1 | EaTrang 1 Tunnel 10%d 94.309.600
) (North-South Expressway, KH-BMT 7 10% 41.365.9 49—_ '
| section) R T !
II | Projects expected t to be bid 10%d 1, 408 45} \
- C _ Otl_lm than construction and mstaatlon 77.1@& i | 58 284 655 B
| ;Ztgo]ﬁ'lcl)gi;t]on and business value of Nam 10% 58.284.655 1
Electricity business 10%a 1.100.398.655




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
No: 321/TB-SD10 Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Hanoi, May 29, 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the audited financial statements for 2024

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company
Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises;
Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of the Company;

The Board of Directors of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to
the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the 2024 Consolidated Financial
Statements and the 2024 Separate Financial Statements of Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

The above financial statements have been fully disclosed in accordance with
regulations and are posted on the website of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company:
http://www.songdal0.com.vn.

For ease of reference, the Board of Directors respectfully encloses with this report
the Abridged version of the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2023 audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited, including:

- Independent audit report;

- Balance sheet;

- Report on business performance;

- Cash flow statement.

Regards, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall consider and approve./.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

,/:f\‘f;gﬁ;-::NCHAIRMAN

00,3
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Recipients:
- As above;
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= l J | | R\ £7 UNY AUDITING AHD COHSULTING COMPARY LIMITED
W k)h |1\/ 5" Floor, B2 Tovier, Roman Plaza, To Huu Read,

Audi

Aning

Connoct to possitility Dai to Wardl, Nam Tu Liom District, Hanoj,

T : 484 24 5670 3999
£ :info-uhy@uhy.vn

No: 303 /2025/ULIY-BCKT uhy.wvo

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REP ORT
On the consolidated financial statements of Song Da 10 Joinl Stock Conpany
For the year ended 31 Decenmber 2024

To:  The Shaveholders
Roard of Mauagement and Board of General Divectors
Song Da 10 Juint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Song Da 10 loint Stock
Company (hereinafter referced to as the “Company”) which were propared on 26 March 2025 as set out
oh page 06 to 48, including the Consolidated Bulance Shect as at 31 December 2024, the Consolidated
Income Statement and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Notes thereto.

Responsibilities of lhe_]]uaul of General Divectors

The Board of General Dircetors of fhe Company is responsible for preparing and presenting the
consolidated financial statements in & true and fair view in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting
standords, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and legal regulations related to {he preparation
wnd prcscmation of the consolidated financial statements and for such internul control as the Bourd of
General Directors determines is nceessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibilitics uf the Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requitements und plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidenee about the amounts and disclosures i
the consolidated financial statements. The selccted procedures depend on the auditor's judgment,
including (ho assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or grror. In making thosc risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated fuancial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, butnot for the purpose of exprossing
an opinion on the effectivencss of the entily's internal contral. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by

Roard of General Divcctors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements,

Wo believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient andrappropriate to provide a basis for
aour qualified audit opinion,

Basis for qualified audit opinion

As of 31 December 2024, the overdue interest expenses payable related to the loan at Song Da 10.1
Company Limited (& subsidiary of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company) have not been recognized with
the amount of VND 44,691,358,453 (of which, the overdue interest expense as of 31 December 2023 is
VND 41,466,841,999, the amount incurred in this period is VND 3,224,516,454). If the overdue interest
expenses Were recognized, the "Short-term accrued expenses” item in the Consolidated Statement of
financial position would increase by VND 44,691,358,453, and the "Retuined carnings” item would
decrease by VND 44,601,358,453. Additionally, in the Consolidated Income Statemenl, the "Financial
expenses” item would increase by VND 3,224,516,454, while the "Operating profit" and "Net prolit
after tax" itoms would decrease correspondingly by VND 3,224,516,454.

£ | Tax | Accountant | Consulting | Traning | Valuation

lependent mombor of UHY Intarnationnl.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONT'D)
Qualified audit opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters referred in {lic "Basis for Qualified Audit Opinion"
paragraph, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give u true and fair view, in all material
respect, the consolidated financial position of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024
as well as the consolidated results of its business oporations and its cash flow for the year then ended,
in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporale Accounting System and
legal repulations related to preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 36.2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stalements, concerning trade
receivables and work-in-progress cXpenses related to the Xckaman | 1lydropower Praject amounting (o
VND 52,626,740,335 (as of | January 2024 is VND 89,217,872,367) and VND 78,355,938,094 (as of
1 January 2024 is VND 78,355,938,094), tiade receivables and work-In-progress expenses related to the
Yekaman 3 Hydropower Project amounting to VND 181,298,300,671 (as of | January 2024 is VND
170,655,338,671) and VND 12,207,337,000 (as of 1 January 2024 is VNI 12,207,337,000). These are
long-standing accounts receivable and unfinished construction items from previous years, whichare still
pending resolution in 2024.

Qu‘r\;(q(tf;[iﬁ}zﬁf\mdil opinion is not related to this cmphasized matter.
\._{'.::;-.:',-‘_‘: AN
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Nplyeiv_Mifh Long Nguyen Minh Thang
Deputy General Dircctor Auditor
Auditar’s Practicing Centificate Auditor's Practicing Cerlilicate
0666-2023-112-1 4421-2023-112-1

For and on behall of

UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Hanoi, 26 Mareh 2025




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY
10-11 floor , Song Da Building, Pham Huny street,
My Dinh 1 ward, Nam Tu |.iem district, Hanoi

FORM BO1-DN/HN
Issued under Circular No.202/2014/TT -BTC
22 December 204 of the Ministry of Finanee

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

ASSLETS

Code Note 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
YND _ VND
CURRENT ASSETS 100 1,530,174,872,307 1,642,260,055,152
Cash and cash equivalents 110 4 176,541,358,555 235,090,703,549
Cash 111 161,541,358,555 169,090,703,549
Cush equivaletits 112 15,000,000,000 -66,000,000,000
Short-term financinl investments 120 - 5,677,143,755
Held-to-maturity investment 123 - 5,6717,143,755
Shori-term accounis receivable 130 924,332,884,086 956,555,113,907
Current accounts receivables 131 790,031,533.998 783,988,078,176
Short-term advances o supplicrs 132 38,256,121,913 7,373,971,279
Short-term loan receivables 135 - 11,064,522,70%
Other short-term receivables 136 10 133,018,712,751 154,747,579,617
Provision for doubtful short-term 137 11 (46,803,119,813) (10,448,673,111)
receivables
Shortage of asset wailing resolution 139 12 9,829,635,237 9,829,635,237
Inventories 140 13 363,072,987,514 380,985,9006,506
lnventories 141 363,972,987,514 380,985,906,506
Other cunent asscts 150 65,327 ,042,152 63,951,187,435
Short-term prepaid expenses 151 6 10,007,940,588 1,790,633,023
Deductible value-added tax 152 55,004,565,551 61,935,463,399
Taxes and other receivables from the 153 18 225,136,013 225,091,013
State Budget
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 576,612,020,287  646,280,474,738
Long-term accounts receivable 210 4,650,631,946 78,000,000
Other long-term receivables 216 10 4,650,631,946 78,000,000
Fixed assets 220 511,032,d83,582  544,d42,483,109
Tangible fixed asscts 221 14 504,132,367,388 544,442,483,1069
- Cost 222 1,408,411,290,591  1,417,109,257,169
- Accwumulated depreciation 223 (904,278,923,203) (872,666,774, 060)
Finanace lease fixed assets 224 15 6,900,116,194 -
- Cost 225 7,214,482,285 -
- Aeewmulated depreciation 226 (314,366,091) -
Long-ferm nssels in progres 240 5 9,391,659,692 13,741,917,852
Construction in progress 242 9,391,659,692 13,741,917,852
Long-term financial investments 250 7 15,739,033,894 42,906,7906,8493
Investments in other entities 253 18,739,033,894 45,906,796,893
Provision for long-term f{inancial 254 (3,000,000,000) (3,000,000,000)
investments
Other long-term assels 260 35,798,211,173 4%,111,276,884
Long-tcrm prepaid expenses 261 6 35,798,211,173 45,111,276,884
TOTAL ASSETS 270 2,106,786,892,594  2,288,540,529,890

—

The accompanying Hofes are an intergral part of these consolidated financial siatements 6




SONG DA 10 JOINT Y$TOCK COMDANY

10-11 floor , Seng Da Building, Pham Hung strect,

My Dinh | ward Nam Tu Liem district, Hanoi

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

RESOURCES Code  Nole
TIABILITIES 300
Current linbilities 310

Short-term trade payables 3n 16

Short-term advances from customers 312 17

Taxes and other payables to the State 313 18

budget

Payable to employces 314

Short-term acerued expenses 315 20

Short-term uncarned revenue 318

Other short-icrm payables 319 21

Short-term horrowings and finance lease 320 19

liabilities

Bonus and welfare fund 322
Long-term linbilities 330

Other long-term payables 337 21

Tong-term borrowings and finance lease 338 19

liabilitics

Deferred corporate income tax 341
OWNER'S EQUITY ' 400
Capital 410 22

Share capital 411

- Ordinary shares with voting rights 411a

Share premiunis 412

Owner's other capital 414

Investment and development fund 418

Retained earnings 421

- Accumulated retained earnings 42]a

brought forward

- Retained profit after tax for the 421b

current year

Interest of non-controlling shareholders 429
TOTAL RESOURCES 440

Prepaver Chief Accountant
{ £l

Le Thi Thanh Nhung

The accompanying notes are an mtergral part of these consolidated finaucial statements

Neguyen Trung Kien

FORM B01-DN/HN
Issued under Circunlar No. 2022014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
- VND VND
1,308,091,141,591  1,485,618,537,858
1,090,905,773,095  1,187,259,805,989
228,847,894,140  245,629,138,736
248,624,163,457  283,757,959,884
7,436,353,658  19,297,861,743
31,348,524,385  33,832,190,196
127,234,824,151  116,985,453,630
265,090,909 -
114,406272,718  118,512,720,459
331,952,613,066  367,501,444,730
790,036,611 1,743,036,611
217,185,368,496  298,358,731,869
5,953,435,259  14,048,665,013
197,951,933,237  271,030,066,856
13,280,000,000  13,280,000,000
798,695,751,003  $02,921,992,032
798,605,751,003  802,921,992,032
427.323,110,000  427,323,110,000
427,323,110,000  427,323,110,000
50,066,521,921  50,066,521,921
3,901,000,000 3,901,000,000
196,319,§77,252  396,319,577,252
(63,879,025,301)  (63,714,288,944)
(63,714,268,944)  (62,641,385,091)
(164,736,357)  (1,072,903,853)
(15,035,432,869)  (10,973,928,197)
2,106,786,892,594

2,288,540,529,890

St H(fmn@ﬁ Mareh 2025

Q S
/ / “hi&uéhﬂ
ol il \!‘ e

SONG DA m{
\ i o

r-""TE\;yen Tuan Auh




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY
10-11 floor , Song Da Building, Pham Hung street,
My Dinh 1 ward, Nam Ty Liem district, Hanol

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMERT
For the year ended 3] December 2024

Items Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Gross sales of merchandise and services 01 23 1,022,914,332,736 705,299,312,356
Less deductions 02 24 769,164,396 2,645,242,353
Net sales of merchandise and services 10 1,022,145,168.340 702,654,070,003
Cost of goods sold and service rendered 11 25 $86,217,261,758 582,339,762,308
Gross profit from sales of merchandise 20 135,927,906,582 120,314,307,695
and services
Financial incomne 21 26 3,938,142,335 1,486,083,028
Financial expenses 22 21 50,606,007,426 11,653,046,756
T which: Interest ¢xpense 23 48,710,276,653 69,862,391,440
Profit or loss from joint ventures, 24 - -
Selling expenses 25 - -
General and administrative ¢Xpenses 26 28 $9,033,272,576 53,717,926,824
Operating profit 30 (673,231,085) (1,570,582,857)
Other income 31 29 2,825,213,260 3,781,880,643
Other expenscs 32 30 2,829,211,667 (1,000,091,262)
Profit from othey netivities 40 (3,998,407) 4,781,971,905
Net profit before tax 50 (677,229,492) 3,211,389,048
Current Corporate income tax expense 51 32 3,549,011,537 8,188,348,773
Deferred Corporale income tax expensc 52 - -
Net profit after tax 60 {4,226,241,029) (4,976,959,725)
After-tax profit of (he parent company al (164,736,357) (1,072,903,853)
Non-controlling shareholders’ after-tax 62 (4,061,504,672) (3,904,055,872)
profits
Basic earnings per share 70 33 (4) (2R)
Deluted earnings per share 11 34 (4) (28)
,;; e danal, 26 March 2023
Preparer Chicf Accountant Al ctol
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Le Thi Thanh Rhuny Nguyen Trung Kien "
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HORM RO2-NN/HN
1ssued under Circular No:202/20 14/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance
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~Nguyen Tunn Anh

The accompanying nofes are an intergral part of these consolidated financial stafements




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY
10-11 floor , Song Da Building, Pham Huug street,
My Dinh | ward, Nam Tu Liem district, Hanoi

FORM B03-DN/IN
Tssued under Cireular No.20272014/1T-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED CASH KLOW ST ATEMENT
(Applying indivect wethod)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS

Code Note Year 2024 Yenr 2023
YND VND
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit hefore tax 1 (677,229,492) 3,211,389,048
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 02 45,465,191,995 44,859,532,399
Provisions 03 36,354,446,702 218,346,101
(Gain) from investing activitics 05 (3,622,813,485) (6,166,669,937)
Tnterest expenses 06 48,710,276,653 69,862,391,440
Operating profit before ovements in 08 126,229,872,373 111,984,989,051
working capital
Increase, decrease in receivables 09 (15,032,861,589) 56,993,822,709
Increase, decrease in inventories 10 21,363,177,152 (21,860,960,849)
Increase, decrease in accounts payable 11 (70,000,039,926) 187,903,457,096
(excluding interest payables, corporate
inconte tax payable)
Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses 12 1,095,758,146 3,455,466,979
Intercst paid 14 (36,345,707,964) (55,635,712,105)
Corporale income tax paid 15 (7,417,974,284) (9,252,080,483)
Other cash outflows from operating (953,000,000) (1,256,200,000)
aclivities 17
Net cashi flows from operating activities 20 18,039,223,908 272,332,782,398
Cash flows from investing activitics
Purchase and construction of fixed asscts 21 (12,055,192,468) (1 ,176,636,364)
and other Jong-term assels
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 22 2.649,806,175 3,598,315,723
and other lonp-term assets
Loans given and purchases of debt 23 - (5,677,143,755)
instruments of other entities
Recovery of loan given and disposal of 24 16,741,666,464 18,000,000,000
debt instruments of other entities
Payments for investment in other entities 25 (1,360,537,000) -
Wilthdrawals of investments in other 26 28,528,299,999 16,714,503,801
entities
Interest income, dividend and profit 29 3,077,350,211 2,568,354,214
distributed
Net cash flows from investing activitles 30 37,581,393,381 33,427,393,619
The accompanying noles are an intergral part of these consolidated financial statenents 9




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY

10-11 floor , Song Na Building, Pham Hung streat,

My Dinh | w.srd Nam Tu Liem district, ITanoi

FORM R0O3-DN/HN
Issued under Circular No.202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Applying indirect method)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS

Cash Mows from financing activities
Proceeds from bomrowings
Repayments of principal
Repayment of finance lease principal
Dividends paid, profits distributed to
owners

Net cash flows from finaueing activities

Net decrense/(increase) in cash aud eash

Cash and cash equivalents at the

heginning of the year
Tffect from changing foreign cxchange
rate

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year'

Preparer Chief Accountant
b 3
s Vil
e W
\
|
Le Thi Thanh Nhung Npgunyen Truog Kien

Code

33
34
35
36

40
50
60

61

70

Note

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
237,928,694,815  261,860,494,058
(344,493,111,050)  (380,786,136,444)
(2,062,549,048) <
(6,442,997,000) .
(115,069,962,283)  (118,925,642,386)
(58,549,344,994)  186,834,533,631
235,090,703,549  48,256,169,918
176,541,358,555  235,090,703,549 |

Hanoi, 26 March 2025
//—-; Gg.u((}lu]DueLtur
b g =4 1!
GO 1Y N
l;() f l‘{f\l.

‘ Nguyen Tuan Anh

The accompanying notes are an infergral part of these consolidated financial stalements 10




UHY AUDITIHG AHD COMSULTIING COMPANRY LIMITED

‘{j .,aLl I 5™ Floor, B2 Tower, Roman Piaza, To Huu Road,

Cannecl 1o possibility Dal Mo Ward, Nam Tu Liarn District, Hanoi,

T :+84 24 6676 3999
E :info-uhy@uhy.vn

uhy.vn
No: 302 /2025/UITY-BCKT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
On the financial statements of Song Da 10 Joint Stack Compaiy
for the year ended 31 December 2024

To:  The Shareholders

Roard of Management and Board of General Direclors
Song Da 10 Joint Stock Campany

We have audited the accompanying financial stataments of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”), which were prepared on 26 March 2025 as sct out on pages
from 06 to 45, including the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2024, the Income Statement, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Notes thereto.

Responsibilities of the Board of General Divectors

The Baard of General Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with Victnamese Accounting Standards, Viemamese
Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements in Vielnam and for such internal control as the Board of General Directors
determines is necessary to cnable the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to {raud or error.

Responsibilities of the Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements bascd on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Audifing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements, plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from malterial misstatement,

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statcments, whether due to fraud or
arror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's
designing and presentation statements with a fair and appropriate view of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circums(ances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the ellectiveness of the Company's internal control, An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtasined is sufficient and appropriate © provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Ungualified opinion

Tn our opinion, the accompanying [inancial statements give u true and fair view, inn all material respects,
the financial position of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company as of 31 December 2024, and results of its
operations and its cash flows for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024, in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and relatcd lopal
regulations on the preparition and presentation of the ¥ inancial Statements in Vietnam.

Audit | Tax | Accountant | Consulting | Traning | Valuation

An Independant mambor of UHY International,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)
Emphasis of matter
We draw aitenlion to Note 34.2 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, concerning trade receivables
and work-in-progress expenses related to the Xekaman 3 Hydropower Project amounting to YND
181,298,300,671 (as of I January 2024: VND 170,635,338,671) and VND 12,207,337,000 (as of 1
January 2024: VND 12,207,337,000), respectively. These reccivables and work-in-progress expenses

have existed for several years, wilh incomplete items still under inspection by related parties. As of
2024, these issucs remain unresolved,

’,.{/j@ﬁ'ft-‘t{ii?ﬁﬁ‘éfﬁi ion is not related to this emphasized matter.
ey - s U
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Nguyen Mink Long

, f\lguycn Minh Thang
Deputy General Dirvector Auditor
Auditor’s Practicing Centificate Auditor’s Practicing Certificate
0666-2023-112-1 4421-2023-112-1

For and on behalf of
UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Hanol, 26 March 2025




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMI'ANY
10-11 Floor, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Sireel,
My Dinh | Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

ASSBETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents
Cush
Cash equivalents

Short-term receivables
Short-term trade receivables
Short-term advances to suppliers
Other short-term receivables
Provision for doubtful short-term
receivables

Inventories
Inventories

Other current assets
Short-term prepaid expenses
Deductible value-added tax

‘Paxcs and other receivables from the
State Budget
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term recelvables
Other long-term receivables
Fixed nssels
Tangible fixed assets
- Cost
- Accumulated depreciation
Finance lease fixed asset
- Cost
. Accummlated depreciation
Non-eurrent assets in progress
Conslruction in progress
Long-term investments
[nvestment in subsidiaries
Investments in other entitics
Provision for long-term financial
Otlicr non-current assels
Long-term prepaid expenses
TOTAL ASSETS

FORM B02-DN

Issued under Circular No.200/2014/ TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

BALANCE SHEET
As at 3] December 2024

The accompanying notes are ai intersral part of the

Code Note 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
YND VND
100 1,399,707,156,618  1,461,410,532,274
110 4 156,890,443,268 224,791,676,813
111 146,890,443,208 158,791,676,813
12 10,_000,000,000 66,000,000,000
130 051,553,956,969 902,265,731,271
131 833,340,432,924 790,652,396,713
132 68,744,342,864 5,595,616,307
136 05,704,298,611 115,898,388,979
(a7 11 (46,235,117,430) (9.880,670,728)
140- 12 244,869,932,113 279,681,373,624
141 244,869,932.113 279,681,373,624
150 46,392,824,268 54,671,750,566
151 10 44,800,263 494,699,022
152 46,347,979,000 54,171,051,544
153 17 45,000 -
200 229,611,267,693 280,469,423,091
210 40,500,000 78,000,000
216 8 40,500,000 78,000,000
220 127,062,337,393 138,545,250,242
221 13 1%0,16‘2,221,]99 138,545,250,242
222 641,644,753,287 639,340,714,161
223 (521,482,532,085)  (500,795,463.919)
24 14 6,900,116,194 -
225 7,214,482,285 -
226 (314,366,091) -
240 9 891,752,859 4,080,166,698
242 891,752,859 4 080,166,698
250 5 67,696,966,268 04,864,729,267
251 118,357,932,374 118,357,932,374
253 18,739,033,894- 45,906,796,893
254 (69,400,000,000) (69,400,000,000)
260 33,919,711,173 42,901,276,884
261 10 33,91?,711,173 42,901,276,884
270 1,629318,424,311  1,741,879,955,365
s¢ ﬁr:c;?.fcial statements 6




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM BO2-DN

10-11 Floar, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Streel, Issued under Circular No.200/2014/TT- -BTC
My Dinh 1 Ward, Nam Tu Licm District, Hanoi dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance Finance
BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D)
As at 31 December 2024
RESOURCES Code Note 3171272024 01/01/2024
VND VND

LIABILITIES 300 §25,070,508,911 944,390,804,020

Current linbilities 310 $13,965,140,415 863,812,072,151
Short-term trade payable L 1S 237,800,745,196 254,899,313,225
Shorl-term advances from customers 312 16 248,624,163,457 283,757,959,884
Taxes and other payables to the State 313 17 6,638,883,117 13,037,640,762
budget
Payables to employees 314 26,963,024,431 27,882,576,509
Shorl-term accrued cxpenscs 315 9 18,707,213,966 16,326,740,860
Short-term unearned revenue 318 265,090,909 -
Other short-term payables 319 20 28,005,554,870 38,062,135,879
Short-term borrowings and finance 320 18 246,630,852,168 228,663,092,731
lease Liabilitics
Bonus and welfare fund 322 329,612,301 1,182,612,301

Non-current liabilities 330 11,105,368,490 80,578,731,869
Other long-term payables 337 20 5,953,435,259 14,048,665,013
Long-term borrowings and finance 338 I8 5,151,933,237 66,530,066,856
lease liabilities

OWNERS' EQUITY 400 804,247,915,400 797,489,151,345

Capital 410 21 804,247,915,400 797,489,151,345
Share capital 411 427,323,110,000 427,323,110,000
- Ordinary shares with voting rights  41la 427,323,110,000 427,323, 110,000
Share premium 412 50,066,521,921 50,066,52.1,921
Investment and development fond 418 288,722,797,097 288,722,797,047
Retained carnings 421 38,135,480,382 31,376,722,327
Aceumudated retained earnings 421a 31,376,722,327 19,567,226,471
broughi forward
Retained earnings for the current 4216 6,758,764,055 11,809,495,856
yea

TOTAL RESOURCES 440 1,629,318,424,311  1,741,879,955,365

H’anm, 26 March 2025

Preparer Chief Acconntant

(‘ener'ﬂ
G [l_m. [\

Director

:—.,J. /

Le Thi Thanh Nhung Nguyen Trung Kicn

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statenienis 7




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY
10-11 Floor, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street,
My Dinh | Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

FORM R02-DN

1ssued under Circular No 2002014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Ttems

2

A

Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VIND
Revenue from sales of goods and 0L 22 082,039,475,275 681,166,486,289
rendering of services
Revenue deductions 02 23 769,164,396 2,645,242,353
Net revenue from sales of goods and 10 981,270,310,879 678,521,243,936
rendering of services
Cost of goods sold and service rendered 11 24 $66,570,855,228 581,710,371.888
Gross profit from sales of goods and 20 114,699,455,651 96,810,872,048
vendering of services
Finaneial income 21 25 3.4417,968,167 954,044,797
Financial expenses 22 26 24,273,330,211 35,613,199,031
I which: Interest expenses 23 22,377,599,438 33,076,987,643
Selling cxpenses 25 = -
(eneral und administrative expenses 26 21 84,253,476,221 41,244,078,930
Opemting profit 30 9,620,617,386 14,007,638,884
Other income 31 28 2,234,772,150 3,764,305,420
Other expenses 3229 1,652,628,752 (1,039,447,004)
Other profit 40 582,143,398 4,803,752,424
Net profit before tax 80 10,202,760,784 19,711,391,308
Current Corporate income tax expenses 51 3 3,443,996,729 7,901,895,452
Deferred Corporate income 1ax ¢Xpenses 52 - -
Net profit after tax 60 6,758,704,055 11,809,495,856
Hanoi, 26 March 2025
Preparer Chief Accountant / &% Genu‘ul Rirector
I~ B o 9/ uhut 1Y N\ /
= = 2oh Mmf' { % .
b’-[ } \u(mu 1y AN
i S
Ui 2
Le Thi Thanh Nhung Nguyen Trung Kien — ‘N’yycn ‘Tuan Anh

The accompanying nofes are an intereral part of these financial statements 8



SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY

10-11 Floor, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street,

My Dinh 1 Ward, Nam 'Pu Liem District, Hanoi

TORM B03-DN

Tssued wnder Circular No0.2002014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

STATEMENT OT CASH TLOW
(Applying indivect methed)

For the year ended 31 Decem

Items

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Provisions
(Gain)/loss from jnvesting activities
Interest expenses
Operating profit hefore chuauges i working
capital
invrease, decrease in receivables
Increase, decrease In inventories
Increase, decrease in payables (excluding
interest payable, corporate income tax
payable)
Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses
Interest paid
Corporate income tax paid
Other cash payments from operating
activities
Net cash _flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
purchase and construction of fixed assets
and other long-term assets
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
and other long-tern assets
Payments for investment in other entities
Procecds from equity investment in other
entities
Proceeds from interests, dividends and
distributed profits
Net vash flows from investing aclivifies

Cade Note

01

02
03
05
06
vs

09

10
11

2
14
15

17
20

21

22

25
26

21

21,129,572,910

The accompanying notes are G intergral part of these financial statements

ber 2024
Year 2024 Yeur 2023
VND VND
10,292,769.734 19,711,391,303

21,199,320,555

16,354,446,702 218,346,101
(2,556,639,317) (3,698,116,114)
22,377,599.438 33,976,987,643
§8,107,740,517 71,407,929,493

(71,769,898,281) 31,874,218,577
37,999,855,350 (18,960,093,424)

(63,963,315,974) 21 1,886,417,675

9,431,464,465 1,558,319,846

(23,445,691,965) (32,993,712,105)
(7,026,506,155) (8,518,365,294)

(853,000,000) (1,247,100,000)
(37,519,358,043) 255,007, 614,768
(10,246,660,061) (1,383,000,000)
2,073,806,175 3,598,315,723
(1,360,537,000) :
28,528,299,999 16,714,503;801
476,586,567 99,800,391
19,471,495,680 19,029,619,915
9




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY

10-11 Floor, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Strect,
My Dinh | Wurd, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

FORM B03-DN

Issued under Circular No.200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONT’D)

(Applying indirect meihod)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Hems

Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND.
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceed from borrowings 33 237,928,694,815  261,860,494,058
Repayment of principal 34 (279.276,519,949) (350,538,407,179)
Repayment of finance lease principal 35 (2,062,549,048) -
Dividends and profits paid to owners 36 (6,442,997,000) -
Net cush flows from financing activities 40 (49,853,371,182) (88,6 77,913,121)
Net cash flows during the year 50 (67,901,233,545) 185,359,321,562
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 60 4 224,791,676,813 39,432,355,251
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 70 4 156,890,443,268 224,791,676,813
the year
Hanoi, 26 Mareh 2025
Preparer Chicf Accountant 7 , ‘(',‘e){iéi:’i} irector
" LR PT, : GO PHAY |V /
j I - HE - e & \ S|
= = = == *li.‘;L_/_: &¥ SDE\]“ ne\ \8 ‘{ s .

Le Thi Thanh Nhung

Nguyen Trung Kien

s
}B Ny

- s

i, v
7 » il

S 122
_“Nipiiyen Tunn Anh

>
A
N\,
e

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statenents 10




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No:

Corporate governance situation in 2024 and directions and tasks in 2025

/BC-HDQT

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Hanoi, May 29, 2025

REPORT

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company

In order to assess the implementation of the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) as well as review the implementation of its tasks, the
Board of Directors (BOD) would like to send to the General Meeting of Shareholders a
report on corporate governance situation including the following patts:

- Assessment of the implementation of the Resolution of the 2024 AGM;

- Activities of the BOD in 2024,

- Directions of activities and tasks of the BOD in 2025.

L. ASSESSMENT OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 2024 AGM

RESOLUTION
1. The results of the implementation of the main economic indicators are as
follows:
Combination Pavent company |
Or Tidicator Uni Perce Perce
der HOAICALOY NAIe mi¢ Anmnual ntage | Annual ntage
Perform Perform
plan Comp plan Comp
letion letion
| | Total productionand | 56 4 | | 295000 | 1.071.262 | 82,72 | 1.075.000 | 1.017.631 | 94,66
business value 7 ‘ 7 7
7 | Revenue 1054 | 1.173.000 | 1.028.909 | 87,72 | 984.400 | 986.953 | 1003
3 | Paymenttothestate | s g 44.800 29.476 | 65,79 28.000 17.230 | 61,54
4 | Profit before tax 10° d 23.200 677 292  20.000 10.203 | 51,02
5 Profit after tax 106 ¢ 16.202 -4.147 | -26,0 13.002 6.841 53,0
| Average income per | 7 | ' R
6 | cmiployesimonth 10°d 14,92 18,52 | 124,0 15,00 19,20 | 1280
7 | Investment 10 d 72.840 3.710 5,0 72.840 3.710 5,0

« Work in progress at the end of the period (Parent Company): VND 220,663 billion,
down VND 25,142 billion compared to the beginning of 2024 (work in progress at the
beginning of the year was VND 245,805 billion);

« Accounts receivable (Parent Company): By the end of 2024, it was VND 830,375
billion, up VND 39,723 billion compared to the beginning of the year (VND 790,652
billion at the beginning of the year);

2. Comments and assessments

In 2024, the Company's main business activities are participating in construction and
installation at the following projects: Nam Phak Hydropower Plant (Laos); Son Trieu

e ——




Tunnel (North-South Expressway Project); EA Trang 1 Tunnel & EA Trang 2 Tunnel
(North-South Expressway Project, Khanh Hoa - Buon Ma Thuot section); Yaly
Hydropower Plant Expansion (Gia Lai) and Dac Mi 1 Hydropower Plant (Quang Nam).
The Company's Board of Directors has focused on directing the implementation of key
tasks as approved by the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The results achieved are: most of the projects undertaken by the Company have met
and exceeded the schedule. The construction work ensures safety and quality according to
design requirements, and is highly appreciated by customers. The main ¢conomic
indicators are achieved as summarized in Section 1 above. However, most of the main
economic indicators did not meet the plan due to the following reasons:

+ At the Dakmi 1 Hydropower Project:

+ Objective reasons: The investor handed over the construction site late and not on
time as stipulated in the signed Contract (especially the pressure tower item). Currently,
the project has stopped construction (the two parties agreed to terminate the confract);

+ Subjective reasons: Capital collection did not meet the requirements, leading to the

provision of input materials and supplies for construction not meeting the progress
requirements.

« Ea Trang project: Some construction items were delayed in handing over the site (2
months), affecting the output and other indicators of the Company.

» The pre-tax profit value of the parent company and the complex was low due to: In
the first 6 months of 2024, the unit made provisions for bad debts for the deposit of VND
35 billion under the stock option contract signed on September 16, 2013 between Song Da
10 JSC and Hai Thach B.O.T Investment JSC regarding the purchase of shares of Deo Ca
Investment JSC, as required by the auditor,

« Regarding the field of electricity production (Nam He Hydropower JSC):
Main economic indicators:

F Nam He Hydropower Joint ]
Stock Company
Order Indicator name Unit Percentage
Amnual Perform C Jetion
plan 2024 | 2024 ompletion
(%)
Total pr ti i
1 otal production and business 10%d 58050 | 47.832 81,0
value
2 Revenue 10%d 54.592 | 44.289 81,0
3 Payment to the state 105d 11.390 | 10.712 94,0
4 | Profit before tax 105d 1507 | -9.412 6250
5 | Profit after tax 10 | 961| -9.548| 9930
Average inco f in | 1 - .
6 em{ge income of employees in 1054 12,70 13,00 102,0
January

In 2024, the production and business value of Nam He Hydropower Joint Stock
Company only reached 81% of the annual plan due to the following reasons:

i ™
PPN
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+ The rainfall in January and February 2024 did not meet the planned plan, so the
output decreased from 3.7 million Kwh to 2.1 million Kwh.

+ The plant temporarily stopped generating electricity from March 10, 2024 to June

5, 2024 to complete the electricity operation license application, so the electricity output
decreased by 7.4 million Kwh.

« Production and business activities of Song Da 10.1 One Member Co., Ltd.:
+ Main economic indicators:

: . Annual Perform (I:’E:.l‘ic:ll(::‘igo‘:l
Order Indicator name Unit plan 2024 2024 (E%)
1 Total value of production and 10%d
business 161.041 121.277 75%

2 |sales T 10sa | 14s420| 110775 77%

3 Revenue 108d 134.008 106.072 79%_
4 Cash in account, deductions 1 1064 160,000 203.821 1_2;%7

5 | Payments to the State 05d | sat0| 2120  39%

6 |Profit after tax l0%d | 1.693| -1.441 85%
B 7 "Average income per person/month | 10°d 15.010 15.809 105%_

Most of the economic indicators of Song Da 10.1 did not meet the set plan due to:

- The output of the projects expected to be bid for could not be implemented (reached
0/38 billion VND);

- Project EA Page 1: The investor was slow to hand over the site (2.5 months late). r
- The settlement of the Xekaman1 project did not achieve the planned progress. n
Pre-tax profit was negative 1.44 billion VND due to the following reasons: 0,
+ High interest expense, output only reached 75%, sales revenue was not enough to .
cover costs. g

+ Machine costs arose due to difficulties in re-exporting construction equipment from
the Nam Phak project (Laos), which was not implemented until the end of December 2024,
leading to machine rental costs while the Company's equipment (in Laos) was not operating
and still had to be depreciated.

+ In 2024, the Company will be subject to additional tax collection due to under-
declaration of VAT in 2021 & 2022, plus fines and late payment interest with a total cost
of VND 1,236 billion.

II. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

1. Activities of the Board of Directors

In the past year, the Board of Directors has closely followed the economic targets
approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to actively direct and
operate the following aspects of work: Technical - Safety; Economic - Planning; Bidding
- Marketing; Finance - Accounting; Materials - Machinery and Organization - Personnel
to optimize costs, improve production and business efficiency while ensuring progress and
quality of projects... with some specific and outstanding actions such as:

a) Merging and terminating the operations of a number of enterprises (XN), affiliated




units to suit the current production and business situation of the Company, specifically:
Merging Song Da Mechanical Factory 10 into Song Da Factory 10.5 and simultaneously
terminating the operations of Song Da Mechanical Factory 10; Merging Song Da Factory
10.7 into Song Da Factory 10.5 and simultaneously terminating the operations of Song Da
Factory 10.7; Terminating the operations of the following units: Song Da Factory 10.6;
Management Board of Nam Emoun Hydropower Project; Management Board of Deo Ca
Project, Representative Office in Ho Chi Minh City;

b) Accelerate the acceptance and payment of projects under construction and final
settlement of completed projects such as: NamPhak Hydropower Plant, Yaly Expansion,
Dak Mil, Xekaman 3, traffic projects such as: Deo Ca Tunnel, Son Trieu Tunnel; Ea Trang
Tunnel;

¢) Actively direct the collection of capital and debt repayment from credit institutions:
Repay the principal loan to credit institutions on time, do not let the situation of overdue
debt transfer occur. The outstanding principal at the end of the year has decreased
significantly compared to the beginning of the year. Specifically (i) Parent company 251
billion/early year 295 billion; (ii) Company 10.1 is 65 billion/early year 116 billion; (iii)
Nam He Company 213 billion/early year 228 billion.

d) Direct the implementation of marketing and bidding work. In 2024 and carly this
year, the Company (together with the Corporation and joint ventures) participated in
bidding and won a number of large projects such as: Hoa Binh - Moc Chau Expressway
(200 billion); Deo Ngang Tunnel (239 billion) and Bac Ai Hydropower Plant (estimated at
600 billion, no contract has been signed yet);

¢) Directing Nam He Hydropower Joint Stock Company to organize the operation of
Nam He Hydropower Plant in accordance with procedures and regulations, ensuring safety
for equipment, people and construction works. Optimizing the operation of machinery and
equipment, while finding all solutions to increase clectricity output;

f) Timely resolving and directing issues in production and business activities
according to the functions, tasks and authority of the Board of Directors in accordance with
the provisions of law as well as the Company's internal management regulations.

2. Remuneration and operating expenses of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board

a) Remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board

According to the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the remuneration

of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board in 2024 at the level of completing the
plan is as follows:

Chrdex Litle s 1‘?3}1?1103:“11) OI:II::I(:::E:S l‘elllllzl(ljzl"iati[)ll
1 | Non-professional Board Member 4.000.000 12 48.000.000

2 | Head of Supervisory Board 3.000.000 12 36.000.000

3 ”I\'/ilrémber of Supervisory Board 2.000.000 12 24.000.000
Total 108.000.000

In 2024, the unit's pre-tax profit will only reach 51.49% (10,298 billion/20 billion).
This is because the unit made provisions for bad debts for the deposit of 35 billion VND




under the stock option contract signed on September 16, 2013 between Song Da 10 JSC
and Hai Thach B.O.T Investment JSC on the purchase of shares of Deo Ca Investment JSC,
as required by the auditor. If excluding this factor, the Company's profit will be 45,298
billion VND, reaching 226.49%. Therefore, the Board of Directors proposes to settle the
remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board at the planned level
with the completion coefficient K=1.0, specifically:

Settlement Number of Total
Order Title remuneration | Number months of
(VND/month) remuneration amount

I Board of Directors' 192.000.000

remuneration
] Non—prgfessional Board 4.000.000 4 12 192.000.000

members N
I Board of Sflpervisors' 84.000.000

remuneration
1 | Head of Supervisory Board 3.000.000 | 12 36.000.000
2 Board o.f Supervisory Board 2.000.000 2 12 48.000.000

members

Total 276.000.000

Currently, the Board of Directors has submitted to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the 2024 remuneration settlement for the Board of Directors and
the Supervisory Board. After the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Company will settle the remuneration for the members of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board at an appropriate time.

b) Operating expenses of the Board of Directors

In 2024, expenses for the general activities of the Board of Directors include office
expenses and transportation costs for the activities of the Board of Directors. These
expenses are included in the Company's expenses according to the provisions of law.

3. Summary of meetings and decisions of the Board of Directors

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 6 meetings. In addition, the Board of Directors
organized to collect written opinions from members to consider issues under the authority
of the Board of Directors. All members of the Board of Directors patticipated in accordance
with the regulations and rules and demonstrated high responsibility for their roles.

The meetings were conducted in accordance with the correct order and procedures,
after each meeting the Board of Directors issued Resolutions and Decisions for the General
Director to implement. With the information that needs to be disclosed according to the
provisions of the Securities Law, the Company also seriously implemented.

In the past year, the Board of Directors issued 44 Resolutions and Decisions to
manage the Company's production and business activities. The list of resolutions and
decisions was also announced by the Company in the Corporate Governance Repott
according to the regulations on information disclosure.

4. Results of supervision of the General Director

The Board of Directors has inspected and supervised the implementation of the
Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Resolutions of the Board of




Directors for the Board of Directors. Every quarter, meetings are held and resolutions are
issued on the quarterly production and business plan and the results of the production and
business plan implementation of the previous quarter are reviewed. The General Director
is required to submit for approval issues under the authority of the Board of Directors, and
only after approval can they be implemented.

In parallel with the inspection and supervision of the Board of Directors, the Board
of Supervisors also periodically inspects the production and business results and the
implementation of the Board of Directors' Resolutions for the General Director.

In terms of key aspects, the Board of Directors has not seen any abnormalities in the
management of production and business activities of the Company's General Director in
2024.

II. DIRECTIONS AND TASKS IN 2025

1. Advantages and difficulties

a) Advantages

- The Party and State continue to give special priority to investment in infrastructure
development such as: Transportation, energy, many large investment projects have been
submitted by the Government to the National Assembly.

- The Government continues to resolutely, synchronously and effectively implement
the work of: Researching and developing specific mechanisms and policies to promote
development and support businesses in the new situation.

- The brand and reputation of Song Da 10 Company are trusted by the Investor
through the construction of projects.

- Most of the output in 2025 basically has contracts or is expected to sign contracts

soon. The Company's construction capacity meets the production and business planin 2025
well.

b) Difficulties

- Difficulties in recruiting labor at some times of labor shortage.

- Large outstanding debts and very difficult to collect,

- Investors increasingly demand high quality, progress as well as price.

- Increasing competitiveness in the market.

2. Operational direction and tasks

With the advantages, difficulties and actual situation of the Company, the Board of
Directors sets out the operational direction and tasks in 2025 as follows:

a) Focusing on forces to complete the work according to signed contracts. Strengthen
and improve construction capacity, increase efficiency in management and operation
activities,

b) Urge and closely direct debt collection, payment acceptance and financial - credit
work to ensure balance of capital sources for production and business;

¢) Actively carry out marketing and bidding activities to seek new job opportunities
for the following years.

d) Find ways to divest capital from enterprises that do not bring economic efficiency;

¢) Continue to review the organizational structure, streamline to ensure efficiency in
accordance with the Company's operating situation;

f) Supervise the Board of Directors in implementing resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders, resolutions of the Board of Directors and comply with legal




regulations as well as internal management regulations of the Company.
g) Ensure and increase income for employees as well as social insurance, health

insurance and other regimes for employces.

h) Properly and fully perform obligations to the state budget.

Above is the report of the Board of Directors on the corporate governance situation
in 2024 and the direction and tasks in 2025. We respectfully request the General Meeting
of Shareholders to consider and approve./.

ON BEHALEF.THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
50 57 SGHAIRMAN

Recipients: CY AT
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SONG DA CORPORATION -JSC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom - Happiness
~ COMPANY
So: 02 /SB10-BKS Ha Noi, Febuary 2, 2025

REPORT OF THE COMPANY'S SUPERVISORY BOARD
(Submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)

To: Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company.

Performing the functions and duties of the Supervisory Board (BOS) in
accordance with the Enterprise Law and the Company's Charter, the Supervisory
Board of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company reports to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on the Board's performance in 2024 as follows:

I. Supervisory Board's performance in 2024:
1. Structure of the Supervisory Board:

The Supervisory Board of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company consists of 3
members:

_Ms. Le Thi Mai Huong - Non-professional Head of the Supervisory Board.
- Mr. Nguyen Van Thanh - Part-time Supervisor

- Ms. Vu Thi To Nga - Part-time Supervisor.

2. Activities of the Board of Supervisors:

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors conducted its activities in accordance with the
functions and tasks prescribed in the Enterprise Law, the Company Charter, and the
Regulations on Organization and Operation of the Board of Supervisors. The Board of
Supervisors has planned, developed a work program and assigned specific tasks to

cach member; regularly inspected and supervised the company's operations, with the
following specific results:

- Supervising the implementation of Resolution No. 655/NQ-DH dated Junc
25, 2024 of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Based on information and documents on the management and operation of the
company's business activities provided by the Board of Directors (BOD), the General
Director, and the company's functional departments, the members of the BOS have
reviewed the internal management regulations and rules that have been issued;
reviewed the Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors.

- Attend and participate in discussions at Board of Directors meetings (when
invited);

- Review the reasonableness of the Company's internal management documents
issued during the year;

- Inspect and evaluate the management and implementation of production
and business tasks of the Board of Directors and the Board of General Directors,
inspect the reasonableness and legality of the Company's production and business
activities in 2024;

1




- The Supervisory Board is provided with information on the Board of Directors'
decisions, on that basis, inspects the legality of the above decisions;

- Conduct an appraisal of the Company's 2024 financial statements; audit
reports of UHY Auditing and Consulting LLC;

After one year of operation according to the functions and tasks prescribed in the
Charter, the Supervisory Board has completed the tasks assigned by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders.

I1. Company performance results in 2024:

Based on information and documents on management and operation provided by
the Company, the members of the Supervisory Board have carried out inspections,
reviews and made comments and assessments as follows:

1. Assessment of the implementation of the Resolution of the 2024
Shareholders' Meeting:

1.1. Some key financial indicators:

In 2024, the Company still faced many difficulties in debt collection and job
search. However, the Board of Directors and the General Director of the Company
have made efforts to direct production and business activities, accept payment and
deb collection, ... and have achieved the following results:

jon |

Order Target Unit Plan | Perform Cﬂfnplitlml
rate %

{ | Production and business value 10%nd | 1075 1.017,6 95%

5 | Total revenue 10%vnd 984,4 __7987_ - _l 00%

3 | Profit before tax | 10%vnd 20 10,2 S]TK;
o 1 ‘_ o l_ T o e, prurasT S T Py E— T e B S

g |pofitaferac 10w 3l 0T s

5 Profit/sales ratio % ) 1.03 YA

_§ | Pelialiein iy % | 16| 08l 5%

7 | Total assets 10°vnd 1.629

W (Egay 0000 |10wd) 89| o4} @ 109%

9 Debt/equity ratio Time 1,2 1,03 86%

10 | Dividends % 0% 0% i

The targets on production and business value did not meet the plan, the reasons
are: (i) Output did not meet the plan; (ii) At Dak Mi 1 hydropower project,
construction has stopped (both parties agreed to terminate the contract); (iii) Ea
Trang project: Most of the main items will not be eligible for construction until
mid-March.

- Particularly, the targets on profit and profit margin did not meet the plan for
2024, the reasons are: output did not meet the plan, the unit set aside provisions
for bad debts on the deposit of 35 billion VND according to the stock purchase
option contract signed on September 16, 2013 between Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company and Hai Thach B.O.T Investment Joint Stock Company on the
purchase of shares of Deo Ca Investment Joint Stock Company.
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In 2024, the Company actively sought jobs and signed new contracts worth
VND 438 billion. Specifically: Package XL-02 Hoa Binh-Moc Chau
Expressway Project worth VND 199 billion; Package: XL-CHQL1-02 Project:
Upgrading and expanding a number of bridges and tunnels on National Highway
| (Xuong Giang, Gianh, Quan Hau bridges and Deo Ngang tunnel) worth VND
239 billion.

1 2. Business results - Cost management - Management costs:

a) Business results

- Revenue in 2024 is VND 987 billion and reaches 100% of the annual plan;
profit is VND 10.2 billion and reaches 51% of the annual plan.

- Profit before tax is VND 10.2 billion and reaches 51% of the annual plan,
production and business activities complete the annual plan. Some projects
recorded losses in 2024: Xekaman 3 lost 5.6 billion VND; Nam He Plant lost
2 08 billion VND; Deo Ca Tunnel lost 0.2 billion VND; Nam Chien Plant lost
0.7 billion VND, Nam Ly Plant lost 1.05 billion VND (all losses due to the
allocation of interest expenses during the period); Dakmi | Company lost 8.85
billion VND, Dakdrinh Plant lost 2.1 billion VND... 04/06 enterprises reported
losses including Enterprise 10.3 lost 10.3 billion VND: Enterprise 10.6 lost 3.64
billion VND; Enterprise 10.7 lost 5.5 billion VND; Song Da 10 Mechanical
Enterprise lost 0.54 billion VND. - Regarding construction and installation
activities, in 2024, there were 23 projects with losses of 25.35 billion VND;
There are 5 projects (Nam Phark, Mui Trau, Eatrang Tunnel, Son Trieu Tunnel,
Nam Theun 1 Tunnel) that recorded a profit of 68.4 billion VND.

b) Management expenses

Business management expenses in 2024 are 84.2 billion VND, accounting for
8 6% of net revenue and increasing by 37.01 billion VND compared to 2023
(47.05 billion VND) and corresponding to an increase of 79%, of which the
provision for receivables is 35 billion VND.

1.3. Regarding financial investment, investment in machinery and equipment

a) Financial investment situation:

- The parent company directly invests in 02 subsidiaries, 04 other companies
with an investment value of 137.09 billion VND as of December 31, 2024, of
which 03 companies are operating ineffectively. In 2024, Cam Lo Tuy Loan BT
Investment Company Limited returned the capital contribution of VND 27.16
billion.

- As of December 31, 2024, the accumulated provision for devaluation of
investments was VND 69.4 billion. Including the provision at Nam He
Hydropower JSC of VND 66.4 billion/investment value of VND 66.4 billion
(provision rate of 100% of investment value); provision at Phu Rieng Kratie
Rubber JSC of VND 3 billion/investment value of VND 3 billion (provision rate
of 100% of investment value).

- Operational situation at 02 subsidiaries in 2024:

At Song Da 10.1 JSC: Total revenue in 2024 is VND 106.07 billion; The loss in

the year is 1.33 billion VND (Xekaman 1 Hydropower Company lost 5.22
3
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billion VND, Eatrang Tunnel Company made a profit of 3.7 billion VND); the
accumulated loss up to December 31, 2024 is 59.2 billion VND and the loss
exceeds 1.27 times the charter capital (charter capital is 46.6 billion VND). The
outstanding principal loan balance at December 31, 2024 is 65.3 billion VND
(the outstanding loan balance at the beginning of the year on January 1, 2024 is
115.83 billion VND). The outstanding loan balance as of April 15, 2025 is 54.3
billion VND and the interest payable is 103.8 billion VND (group 5 debt).

In addition, the Company has not recorded in the books the overdue interest
payable as of December 31, 2024 is 44.691 billion VND.

At Nam He Hydropower Joint Stock Company: Total revenue in 2024 is 44.2
billion VND; loss in the year is 9.544 billion VND; accumulated loss up to
December 31, 2024 is 150.9 billion VND and loss exceeds 1.30 times charter
capital (charter capital is 115.5 billion VND); negative equity is 35.3 billion
VND. Outstanding loans as of December 31, 2024 are 212.8 billion VND, of
which overdue loans are 180.7 billion VND. In the first 3 months of 2025, 5.5
billion VND has been paid. Thus, outstanding loans as of April 2, 2025 are
207.3 billion VND, of which overdue loans are 175.2 billion VND.

- Dividend payment situation:

In 2020, 4% have not yet finalized the payment list.

2021, 2022 and 2023: The Company does not pay dividends because the Parent
Company's profit on the Consolidated Financial Statements of these years is a
loss.

a) Investment situation:

- Investment project to improve the capacity of construction equipment and
production and business management of the Company: in 2024, the company
invested in 6 trucks to transport underground stone with a value of 8.62 billion
VND/Plan of 80 billion VND, reaching 10. 78%.

- Investment implementation did not meet the plan because in 2024, the amount of
available machinery and equipment met the construction progress, so the company
proactively extended the investment progress.

1.4. Bank loan and debt repayment situation

_ In 2024, the disbursed amount was 230.71 billion VND; the debt repayment
amount was 279.27 billion VND.

- Outstanding loans at credit institutions as of December 31, 2024 were 246.6
billion VND. Financial interest in 2024 is VND 22,377 billion, of which the interest
expense exceeding the control level according to Decree 132/2020/ND-CP is VND
6,375 billion (accounting for 28.5% of total interest expense).

(1 Short-term loans and financial leasing debt up to December 31, 2024 is VND
242.52 billion (of which: bank loans are VND 166.37 billion; long-term loans due
for payment are VND 62.3 billion)/total short-term loan limit is VND 500 billion.

(1 Long-term loans up to December 31, 2024 are VND 5.1 billion

[ Quistanding loans in 2024 have decreased significantly (VND 43 billion).

1.5. Regarding accounting and financial statement appraisal in 2024:
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- The Company has complied with the requirements of accounting standards and
accounting regimes in organizing accounting work, performing accounting and
preparing full quarterly financial statements. [ inancial statements are also
published promptly in accordance with current regulations for listed companies.

- According to the Independent Audit Report No. 302/2025/UHY-BCKT dated
March 26, 2025 by UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited - the auditing
unit with the opinion on the issue that needs to be emphasized: "We would like to
draw readers’ attention to Note No. 34.2 of the Notes to the Financial Statements,
the receivables firom customers and unfinished production costs related to the
Xekaman 3 Hydropower Project are respectively VND 181,298,300,671 (as of
January 1, 2024: VND 170,655,338,671) and VND 12,207,337,000 (as of January
1, 2024: VND 12,207,33 7,000). These are receivables and unfinished production
costs that have existed for many years, the categories The unfinished items are still
being accepted by the parties, in 2024 these problems are still waiting to be
resolved”.

The 2024 financial report has corrected the 2023 exception (the Company has
recorded a provision for receivables for the deposit to purchase shares of Deo Ca
JSC of VND 35 billion). The Board of Supervisors agrees with the figures
presented in the consolidated financial statements prepared as of December 31,
2024, which have been audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting LLC.

The Company's financial situation as of December 31, 2024:
Unit:vnd

Order Indicators 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
1 Total Assets 1.629.318.424.311 1.741.879.955.365
- Current Assets 1.399.707.156.618 1.461.410.532.274

|- Long-Term Assets ©229.611.267.693 |

280.469.423.091
1.629.318.424.311

1.741,879.955.365

2 | Capital
| - Liabilities

© 825.070.508.911 944.390.804.020

| - Owner's Equity 804.247.915.400 797.489.151.345
Financial indicators for 2024:

Order Indicators 2024 2023 §

1 | Capital Structure N

Liabilities/Total Capital 0,51 times 0,54 times |

Liabilities/Equity 1,03 times 1,18 times

Bank Loans/Equity 0,31 times 0,37 times

2 | Solvency N

| General Solvency | 1L97times|  184times

Current Solvency _ - 1,72 times 1,69 times

Quick Solvency i l,3ﬂin1cs B __i,?»? iimcsr

3| Capital Utilization Efficiency |}

Profit after Tax/Revenue 0,68% 1,73%

Profit after Tax/Total Assets 0,41% 0,68%




Order Indicators 2024 2023
Profit after Tax/Chartered Capital 1,38% L fh

Profit after Tax/Equity 0,84% 1,48%
- Comparing the indicators in 2024 with 2023, the indicators on the arrangement of
capital structure are slightly adjusted.

- Regarding efficiency indicators: The indicators on capital efficiency in 2024 have
decreased slightly compared to 2023.

- The Company's shares have been delisted from HNX since January 24, 2024 and
traded on Upcom since February 5, 2024. Returning to HNX is difficult to implement,
on the other hand, the liquidity of SDT shares is very low because the stock value has
decreased, the ability to recover is difficult, because the company's accumulated losses
are large due to ineffective production and business activities at subsidiaries.

1.6. Regarding the value of unfinished volume

- The value of unfinished volume as of December 31, 2024: VND 231 billion and an
increase of VND 30.58 billion compared to the beginning of the year. Some unfinished
projects with losses: Dakmi 1 lost 6.637 billion VND; Xekaman 3 lost 0.382 billion
VND. This is a potential loss that will become a reality when the project is completed.
~ In the past year, the settlement of the values of unfinished volume that have existed
for a long time as mentioned has not had positive changes, especially some debts will
turn into losses at some projects such as: Hua Na Hydropower Plant; Ban Ve
Hydropower Plant. In addition, at other projects such as Xekaman 3, Ngoi Hut Vung
Ang, .... and some other projects with long-term debts that are difficult to recover.

1.7. Debt situation and capital recovery

- Total debt receivable from customers as of December 31, 2024 is 830 billion VND, a
decrease of 39.72 billion VND compared to the beginning of the year. In 2024, the
Company recovered a number of long-standing projects such as Nam Theun 1 Project:
VND 18 billion, Nam Chien Hydropower Project: VND 18.5 billion; Dakrinh
Hydropower Project: VND 1.6 billion;... which had a positive impact on the
company's financial situation and ensured capital for production and business.

- However, there are still some large debts that are difficult to collect and lead to
financial risks (Xekaman 3 Project: VND 181.29 billion; Deo Ca Project: VND 71.81
billion; Nam He Hydropower Project: VND 111.62 billion; Nam Emoun Project: VND
83.3 billion).

- Advance payment as of December 31, 2024 is VND 8.37 billion (of which Enterprise
10.3 has an advance payment of VND 7.95 billion), down VND 0.99 billion compared
to the beginning of the year of VND 9.36 billion. Some individuals' outstanding
advances at Enterprise 10.3 have remained almost unchanged and have decreased
insignificantly compared to 2023 (Pham The Duy is 759 million VND; Pham Van
Hung is 631 million VND, Phan Minh Duc is 1.14 billion VND; Nguyen Van Bon is
2.117 billion VND; Pham Van Tao is 1,021 billion VND...).

Debt reconciliation and provisioning:

- Receivables are monitored and classified by debt term and age, however,
provisioning has not been ensured according to regulations.

- In 2024, the Company will make additional provisions of 35 billion VND.

- The total provision for doubtful debts as of December 3 1, 2024 is 44.88 billion VND,
of which provision for doubtful debts for the deposit of 35 billion VND at Hai Thach
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BOT Investment Joint Stock Company is made. Based on the overdue receivables
situation mentioned above, the provision for bad debts as of December 31, 2024 is
very small compared to the value required to be set aside according to regulations
(customer receivables account 131 - from 1 year to less than 2 years is 18.77 billion
VND; from 2-3 years is 7.2 billion VND; over 3 years is 430.7 billion VND).

1.9 Budget payment situation

- Tax payable as of December 31, 2024 is 6.65 billion VND, of which corporate
income tax is 4.7 billion VND; personal income tax is 1.5 billion VND; other taxes are
0.4 billion VND.,

_ Social insurance payable up to December 31, 2024 is 3.96 billion VND, by March
15, 2025, the amount of late payment of social insurance is 2.7 billion VND in 2024,
recording in expenses the amount of fines, late tax payment and late payment of social
insurance is 0.417 billion VND (late payment of social insurance alone is 0.119 billion
VND). Therefore, the company's total profit is reduced by the corresponding amount.
2. Results of supervision of the Board of Directors, General Director and other
managers:

- The Board of Directors has organized the implementation of the Resolution of the
General Meeting of Shareholders in a timely and flexible manner. The Chairman of the
Board of Directors regularly directs, inspects and grasps the situation of all aspects of
the business's operations and gives specific instructions on arising issues, sometimes
down to small details.

_ The resolutions of the Board of Directors are issued in accordance with the functions
and authority of the Board of Directors and have content consistent with the policies
and Resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders, the Law on Enterprises, the
Law on Securities and the Company's Charter.

- In 2024, the Board of Directors issued 42 resolutions and decisions, including
resolutions - decisions in the field of bidding for the purchase of machinery and
equipment; the field of credit finance; human resources organization; Internal

regulations; bidding for construction contracts and other issues under the authority of
the Board of Directors.

- Although production management is very difficult due to the construction being
spread over many locations, it has been timely and prompt, all project works are on
schedule and meet technical requirements;
- Management and accounting work complies with Vietnamese accounting standards,
the Vietnamese accounting system and current regulations of the State.
- Capital for production, business and investment activities, although very difficult, has
been ensured. The Company uses loans for the right purposes.
- Job search issues are of concern, so the results of marketing and bidding in 2024
have achieved positive results.
2. Results of the assessment of coordination between the Board of Supervisors
and the Board of Directors and the General Director of the company

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors was provided with favorable conditions by the
Board of Directors and the General Director in providing information on the
company's operations. Closely coordinate in the management, operation and control of
the company's production and business activities.
The Supervisory Board attends meetings of the Board of Directors (when invited), and
gives opinions according to the functions, tasks and powers of the Supervisory Board.
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[IL. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS:

Tn 2024, the Board of Directors and the Board of General Directors have made
efforts to maintain stability, overcome shortcomings and basically completed the
targets voted and approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In
order for the company to operate effectively in 2025, the Supervisory Board
recommends a number of issues to the Board of Directors and the General Director of
the Company as follows:

- Focus resources to complete the production and business plan targets for 2025.

- Find solutions to complete the progress of projects according to signed contracts,
avoid contract disputes and progress penalties due to subjective reasons.

- Develop more drastic and stronger solutions to recover bad debts at some projects
and personal debts.

- Strengthen the work of acceptance, settlement, and reduction of unfinished value at
projects; Timely resolve with investors and competent State agencies on approving
estimates, settlement, and related policies to ensure the Company's interests.

Strengthen measures and effectively implement debt collection, especially long-term
overdue debts.

- Foeus on market work to find jobs for 2025 and the following years.
- Balance capital to pay dividends in 2020.

_ Consider debt classification and . The failure to make provisions for the above debts
has a significant impact on the financial statements of the current year and the
following years. - Continue to seek partners to divest capital at Nam He Joint Stock

Company, review the operations of ineffective branches and develop a restructuring
plan.

[V. 2025 BOARD OF SUPERVISION ACTIVITIES PLAN

_ Perform functions and tasks according to the provisions of the Company Charter and
the Law on Enterprises.

- Periodically deploy the work of appraising the 6-month financial statements and
annual reports;

- Organize the inspection and supervision of the implementation of the Resolution of
the General Meeting of Shareholders, the compliance with the Company Charter by

the Board of Directors, the Board of General Directors, affiliated units and functional
departments in the Company;

- Strengthen the regular inspection and supervision of the Company's activities through

the decisions of the Board of Directors and the Board of General Directors of the
Company.

- Monitor the implementation of recommendations of the Inspection Team (if any).
- Perform other tasks of the Board of Supervisors according to the Law on Enterprises.

- Review and complete the Company's internal governance regulations to ensure

compliance with the current production and business situation and changes in relevant
specialized laws.




Above is the report of the Board of Supervisors on the business results, activities
of the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the operation plan for 2025.

Sincerely thank you!

ON BEHALE.-OE THE SUPERVISION BOARD

Recipients: ‘,»:”f( X WGE} IRMAN

- Shareholders (Report);
- Board of Directors, General
Director, Board of Supervisors
members;

- Supervisory Board (file).
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SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 325/TT-HbQT Hanoi, April 2, 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the 2024 profit distribution plan

To: Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company's General Meeting of Shareholders

Based on the Enterprise Law;
Based on the 2024 business results.
The Board of Directors develops the 2024 profit distribution plan as follows:

Order Contents Amount (VND) Note
1 Profits from previous years carried forward 14.283.797.927
2 Profit after tax in 2024 of the parent company 6.758.764.055
3 Total undistributed profit after tax 21.042.561.982 | (= 1+2)
4 Profit after tax in 2024 on the consolidated
financial statements -164.736.357
5 Total profit after tax distributed in 2024 0
6 Profit distribution plan in 2024 10.000.000.000

6.1 | Profit provision for bonus and welfare funds 10.000.000.000

6.2 | Expected dividend payment

- Charter capital 427.323.110.000
- Dividend rate 0%
- Dividend payment amount 0

7 Remaining profit carried forward to the (=3-6)
following year 11.042.561.982

The parent company's after-tax profit on the 2024 Consolidated Business
Performance Report is negative. However, the Company plans to distribute from the
remaining profits of the previous years of the parent company.

We respectfully request the General Meeting of Shareholders to consider and
approve./.

. — .

ON B(gfﬁArIﬁOOF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

/ SNOEHAIRMAN
Recipients: ff _O"/ {;m\,h Ty &3
~ds.above; { > cOpHAn
- To the Secretary. ]
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SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 322/TT-HPQT Hanoi, April 2, 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the finalization of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the remuneration plan for 2025

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company

Based on the Law on Enterprises;

Based on the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024;

Based on the business results in 2024.

The Board of Directors reports and proposes that the General Meeting of Shareholders
consider and approve the finalization of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the remuneration plan for the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in 2025 as follows:

1. Remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2024

In 2024, the unit's pre-tax profit only reached 51.49% (10.298 billion/20 billion). This
is because the unit made provisions for doubtful receivables for the deposit of VND 35
billion under the stock option contract signed on September 16, 2013 between Song Da 10
ISC and Hai Thach B.O.T Investment JSC regarding the purchase of shares of Deo Ca
Investment JSC, as requested by the auditor. If excluding this factor, the Company's profit
result is VND 45,298 billion, reaching 226.49%. Therefore, the Board of Directors
proposes to settle the remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board

N690

at the planned level with the completion coefficient K = 1.0, specifically: %1 .\}Jf‘ém
LY e GT
Nmélfhcr ﬂ(‘\U PHAL
! Si“}wf‘ N i
Settlement > Gha
Order Title remuneration I\i;m.l mon;lls Total amount \5 \
(VND/month) ¢ < N z’?‘,‘*-z_\ S
remune S YEM -
ration T
I Board of Directors' remuneration 192.000.000
T Non-professional Board members 4,000,000 4 | 12 19?30@007
[ Board of Su‘pervisbrs' ) ' ' ” o i
1 remuneration 84.000.000
| | Head of Supervisory Board 3.000.000 | 1 12 36.000.000
I Board of Supervisory Board
' sharibiers 2.000.000 2 12 48.000.000
Cong 276°000'000J

2. Remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board in
2025

The remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board is linked
to realized profits. When realized profits are equal to the annual planned profits (plan

completion coefficient K=1), the remuncration of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board is as follows:




. . Remuneration
Order Title (VND/month)
1 | Non-professional Board Member 4.000.000
2 | Head of Supervisory Board 3.000.000
3 | Member of Supervisory Board 2.000.000

The Board of Directors will base on the annual business results of the unit as a basis

for assessing the plan completion coefficient (K) and propose an appropriate remuneration
level for settlement.

Remuneration is paid and settled according to the regulations of the Unit and the law.
Applicable time: from January 1, 2025.

We respectfully request the General Meeting of Shareholders to consider and
approve./.

ON BEHALI‘ OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

=0 o e, CHAIRMAN
Recipients: s /E’VU_Q PR
- As above; . :
CONG [y

- To the Secretary.
el

o0 prAN /
SONG mtn

4{ .

TRAN TUAN LINH




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
No: 03/TTr-BKS Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Hanoi, April 02, 2025
PROPOSAL
Regarding the selection of auditing unit in 2025
To: General Meeting of Sharcholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company

Base:

Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 14, 2020;

Charter of organization and operation of the Company;

Decision 2370/QD-BTC dated November 15, 2024 of the Ministry of Finance on
approving auditing enterprises and practicing auditors to audit public interest entities in
2025,

Decision 1255, 1266, 1268/QD-UBCK dated November 19, 2024 of the State
Securities Commission on approving auditing organizations and practicing auditors to
audit public interest entities in the securities sector in 2025 (for UHY Auditing and
Consulting LLC, RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting LLC, A&C Auditing and
Consulting LLC);

To ensure the requirements on reporting quality and progress of publicizing semi-
annual financial reports and 2025 financial reports of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company,
the Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders for approval:

1. List of 03 independent auditing companies on the list approved by the Ministry of

Finance and the State Securities Commission to audit the Company's 2025 Financial
Statements, including:

- UHY Auditing and Consulting LLC;

- A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited;

- RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

2. Authorize the Board of Directors of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company to select
one of the auditing units on the above list approved by the Ministry of Finance and the
State Securities Commission to audit the public interest unit in 2025.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval./.

ON BEﬁAUEQETHE SUPERVISION BOARD
Receiving place: Fa e o)

- As above; 2/ GONG TY
- Member of the Supervisory Board; 00 PHAN
- Save: Company office, Supervisory SONG DA
Board. |




SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 612/TB-SD10 Hanoi, May 22, 2025

PROPOSAL
On the approval of construction contracts between Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company and related parties under the approval authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company
Based on the Law on Enterprises;
The Charter of Organization and Operation of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company;

Currently, construction contracts between Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company and Song
Da Corporation (shareholders are organizations owning more than 10% of the total
common shares of the company) with a value greater than 35% of the total asset value of
Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company recorded in the most recent financial report (at the time
of signing) must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders through the main
contents (according to Clause 3, Article 167 of the Law on Enterprises).

Therefore, in order to meet legal requirements and facilitate the signing and
implementation of these contracts, Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company respectfully submits
to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval of the main contents
stated in the draft Contract attached below

(Details of the draft Contract attached)

Respectfully request the General Meeting of Shareholders to consider and approve./.

ON BE}E;ALE-.-OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Recipient: ,{: V0700 SSCHAIRMAN
- As above O No)
A ) v \Y )
-Save ]/T (:()Nb LY \9.3
N A

¥ c0 pHAN "}(
SONG UA 10 /5 )

Fi /

N
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

CONTRACT

Based on:

_ Contract between Song Da Corporation - JSC or Song Da Company... (referred
to as "Main Contractor") and the Project [nvestor/Project Investor Representative
(referred to as "Main Contract");

- Minutes of negotiation of the construction and installation contract for the
project belonging to the work of the Main Contractor in the Main Contract between the
Main Contractor and Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company;

- Performance capacity of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company;
The contract is made on the date month year between:

1. The contracting party: SONG DA CORPORATION - JSC OR SONG DA
COMPANY....... (hereinafter referred to as “Party A”)

e AAATCSST © vernvessinsnsssisns senvesnes sonnpensbiise

= Phone: cvvvveiiiiiiiiiiineiine Bl .. o6 smeussim swomsom s asampe o550 48 411898

m ACCOUNL, vevneereeransssansonsiressssnsnssassses

< TAX COUBE. covareniisivpnsssnnsnmvsonans sonennis

- Representative: ME/MS.t oo - POSItION: cvvvviireiiieneneins
(According to Authorization NO. vevvennn dated: o oufves s  — OF vavasany amven )

2. Contractor; SONG DA 10 JOINT STOCK COMPANY (hereinafter
referred to as “Party B”)

- Address: 11th Floor, Tower B, Building HH4, Song Da-My Dinh Urban Area,
My Dinh Ward 1, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi.

 ACCOUNE: vvvvuasscosisrivsmssesisssssrinnnsnonssses

- Tax code: 5900189357

_ Phone: 024.37683998 E-mail: songdal Ovp@gmail.com

- Representative: MI. .cvuciiinnri - POSItION: «.ovvvverieiiennenn
(According to Authorization No. ........... dated ..ood v ! S— ) (P, )
The two parties agree to sign this Contract with the following specific contents:
Article 1. Definitions and interpretations

Applicable as the main contract

Article 2. Contract documents

The documents constituting the contract are arranged in the following order of
priotity:
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2.1. Contract, with contract appendices;
2.2. Decision approving the results of contractor selection;
2.3. Minutes of negotiation to complete the contract;

2.4, Decision approving the contractor with sufficient capacity and experience to
implement the bid package;

2.5. Contractor's capacity profile;

2.6. Contract with the Investor;

2.7. Other attached documents (if any);
Article 3. Law and language used

3.1. The contract is governed by the legal system of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam;

3.2. The language used for the contract is Vietnamese.

Article 4. Contract performance guarantee and advance payment guarantee

4.1. Contract performance guarantee:

4.1.1. Party B must implement security measures by bank guarantee or by another
method proposed by Party B and approved by Party A;

4.1.2. The value of the contract performance guarantee is equal to 10% of the
contract value and is valid from the date of issuance until the end of the 28th day after
the Investor issues the Completion Certificate;

4.2. Advance payment guarantee:

- Party B must submit to Party A a contract advance payment guarantee with a
value equivalent to the advance payment value;

- The advance payment guarantee must be issued by a bank or by another method
proposed by Party B and approved by Party A, effective until the full advance payment
is repaid. The value of the advance payment guarantee will be gradually reduced

according to the advance payment amount that Party B repays through each payment
period.

- The time for submitting the advance payment guarantee is within 14 days after
the Contract takes effect.

Article 5. Content and volume of work

Party A agrees to deliver, Party B agrees to undertake the construction of a
number of work items belonging to Party A's work under the main contract.

Article 6. Time and progress of Contract implementation

- Contract implementation time: From the date the contract takes effect and Song
Da 10 Joint Stock Company has sufficient conditions for construction (receiving the
site, approved construction drawing design).

- Contract implementation progress: According to the main contract and
agreement between the two parties
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Article 7. Contract price, advance payment and payment

7.1. Contract value and form:

- Contract value is: price including value added tax and contingency costs
approved by both parties based on the main contract value and agreement between the
two parties;

- Contract form: According to fixed unit price or adjusted according to specific
conditions of the Contract.

7.2. Advance payment:

According to the main contract rate or according to agreement between the two
parties

7.3. Payment:
- General principles:

+ After Party A receives payment from the Project Investor minus deductions (if
any).

+ Payment value is determined based on the accepted volume approved by Party
A and the Investor;

- Payment term:

After Party A receives payment from the Investor and receives payment
documents from Party B according to regulations.

7.4, Payment of retention money: After Party A receives the payment from the
Investor:

7.5. Currency and method of payment:

- Payment currency: Vietnamese Dong (VND).
- Payment method: Bank transfer.

Article 8. Rights and obligations of Party A

Refer to the content of the clause "Rights and obligations of Party A" in the main
contract and according to the specific terms of the contract.

Article 9. Rights and obligations of Party B

Refer to the content of the clause "Rights and obligations of Party B" in the main
contract and according to the specific terms of the contract.

Article 10. Insurance and warranty
10.1. Insurance

Party B must purchase insurance for Party B's equipment and personnel, and
insurance for third partics.

10.2 Warranty

After receiving the minutes of acceptance of the construction work and
construction items for putting into use, Party B must:

10.2.1. Carry out the construction warranty for a period of 24 months for main
works and 12 months for construction works;
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10.2.2. In case Party A pays the retention money during the payment stages for
the warranty, Party B must submit to Party A a guarantee to perform the construction
warranty obligation within 21 days before the date of receiving the minutes of
acceptance of the construction work and construction items for putting into use. The
warranty guarantee must be valid until the end of the warranty period and must be
issued by a natural person or legal entity and must follow the current prescribed form
or another form approved by the Investor;

10.2.3. During the construction warranty period, Party B must repair all etrors and
defects caused by Party B's fault during the construction process at Party B's expense.
Repair of these errors must be started within no more than 21 days after receiving the
Investor's notice of these errors. If after this period, Party B does not start performing
the repair work, Party A has the right to hire another contractor (third party) to perform
these works and all costs for the repair to be paid to the third party will be borne by
Party B and will be deducted from Party B's warranty money and notify Party B of the
above value, Party B is required to accept the above value;

Article 11. Risks and Force Majeure:

According to the content of the Main Contract

Article 12, Contract bonuses and penaltics for breach of contract:

Applied according to the Main Contract and specific conditions of the contract

Article 13. Complaints and dispute settlement

13.1. Complaints

Implemented according to the provisions stated in Article 44 of Decree No.
37/2015/ND-CP.

13.2. Dispute settlement

Implemented according to the provisions stated in Article 45 of Decree No.
37/2015/ND-CP.

When a dispute arises during the performance of the contract, the parties shall *
attempt to negotiate to resolve it by conciliation. ;

In case of unsuccessful negotiations, within 15 days from the date of the dispute
arising under the Contract, the parties shall submit the matter to arbitration to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the rules of Vietnam (or the People's Court) as
prescribed by law. The decision of the arbitration (or the People's Court) is final and
binding on the parties.

Article 14, Validity of the contract

This contract shall be effective when signed by a competent person and Party A
shall receive a performance guarantee from Party B.

Article 15. General Provisions

15.1. The performance of the contract is within the relationship and to fulfill the
objectives of the contract with the Investor;

15.2. In case the contents have not been mentioned in this confract, the
appropriate provisions in the contract with the Investor shall apply;

15.3. The two parties commit to properly implementing the provisions of this
contract. When one party has a recommendation, proposal, or request, the other party
must be responsible for responding.

15.4. The contract is made into 08 sets with equal legal value. Party A will keep
06 sets. Party B will keep 02 sets.

REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY A REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY B




SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness
Hanoi, June 26, 2025

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises and the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Song Da 10 JSC;

Pursuant to the Minutes of Meeting No. ..../BB-PHDCD dated June 25, 2025 of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025.

RESOLUTION:
Article 1. Approval of the 2025 production and business plan

1. Main economic indicators

GENiﬁKI'MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF SONG DA 10 JSC

, Plan 2025 B
i Tugel Anks Merge | Parent company
I Totfll value of production and | 10°vnd | { {00.399 905.030
business
1 Construction value 10 ynd | 1.020.706 885.030
2 | Production and busipess value 106vnd | —21;& - 20'0067
other than construction
"3 | Electricity business value | 10°vnd | 58285 | -
IT | Financial plan 106 vnd T
1 Revenue 10 vynd | 1.093.865 869.736
2 Payment"to the State 106 vnd 46.864 | 29.465
3| Profit before tax 106vnd |  14.476 10921
4 Profit after tax 106 vnd 11.099 8413
5 |Rate 106 vnd
= Marginal profit % 1,32 1,26
- Profit after tax/Chartered capital % 2,60 1,97
(Parent company)
- Profit after tax/Equity % 1,29 1,10
6 | Equity - 106vnd | 779.242 782,104
7 23311;3;@;; capital (Parent 10°vnd | 497394 427.324
8 Debt/Equity ratio time 1,8 Ti1Z]

2. Key tasks

a) Develop specific measures, organize and comprehensively implement plans,
ensuring the completion of the 2025 production and business plan.



b) Organize the construction of works to ensure safety, on schedule, and quality
according to signed contracts, focusing on directing the construction of key works such as
Son Trieu Tunnel (North-South Expressway project); EA-Trang 1&2 Tunnel (North-South
Expressway project, Khanh Hoa - Buon Ma Thuot section); Deo Ngang Tunnel; Hoa Binh
- Moc Chau Expressway project and new projects expected to be bid in the year.

¢) Continue to review the organizational structure and operation of departments and
affiliated units to organize and arrange them in accordance with the unit's orientation.

d) Regularly review regulations and rules to promptly amend and supplement them in
accordance with the production and business situation and in accordance with current legal
regulations.

¢) Direct Nam He Hydropower J oint Stock Company to organize the operation of Nam
He Hydropower Plant in accordance with procedures and regulations, ensuring safety for
equipment, people and construction works. Optimize the operation of machinery and
equipment, and at the same time find all solutions to increase electricity output, especially
electricity generation during peak hours to achieve the highest output value, striving to
complete the set plan.

f) Continue to consolidate and build a strong enough bidding team to participate in
marketing and bidding for projects.

g) Invest in motorbikes and construction equipment suitable to the actual needs and
capacity of the unit.

h) Pay full and timely salaries to employees. Balance tax and social insurance debt
payments to the social insurance agency to ensure the rights of employees;

i) Focus on collecting capital and recovering debts, especially personal debts and debts

of organizations and partners who are investors that the unit directly participates in bidding
and wins.

i) Actively follow up and direct the implementation of acceptance and payment work
at projects under construction and final settlement of completed projects such as: XKM3,
Deo Ca tunnel, NamPhak, Yaly, Dak Mil hydropower plants...;

k) Arrange capital to repay principal and interest to banks according to schedule. Do
not let overdue debt or bad debt arise. Maintain and develop relationships with credit

institutions to ensure capital for the Company's production and business activities at the
lowest cost.

I) Review and resolve recommendations of the internal control board of Song Da
Corporation, recommendations of competent State agencies (if any), and directive
documents of Song Da Corporation.

m) Continue to divest financial investment in Nam He Power Joint Stock Company
according to the Resolution approved by the Corporation.

n) Analyze the economic efficiency of projects implemented in the past, propose
solutions to completely resolve existing problems and difficulties in completed projects,
and at the same time draw experience to resolve problems in projects under construction.
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0) Implement maximum savings in production and management costs on the basis of:
checking and reviewing to re-calibrate the company's internal norms, building a daily labor
price suitable to the actual situation, determining personnel, rearranging the organization,
reducing the indirect labor force in accordance with the current production and business
situation of the unit, reducing costs of gasoline, electricity, water, stationery, etc.

(Approval rate: ...... % of voting shares attending)

Article 2. Financial report for 2024

Approve the Financial report for 2024 audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting
Company Limited.

(approval rate: ...... % of voting shares attending)

Article 3. Report of the Board of Directors.

Approval of the Report of the Board of Directors.

(approval rate: ...... % of voting shares attending)

Article 4. Report of the Supervisory Board

Approval of the Report of the Supervisory Board.

(approval rate: ...... % of voting shares attending)

Article 5. Profit distribution plan for 2024

Approval of the profit distribution plan for 2024 as follows:

TT Content Amount (VND) Note
1 | Previous year's profit carried forward 14.283.797.927
2 | 2024 profit after tax of the parent company 6.758.764.055
3 | Total undistributed profit after tax 21.042.561.982 | (=1+2)
4 2024 proﬁt after tax on the consolidated
financial statements -164.736.357
5 | Total profit after tax distributed in 2024 0
6 | 2024 profit distribution plan 10.000.000.000
6.1 | Provision for bonus and welfare funds 10.000.000.000
6.2 | Expected dividend payment
- Charter capital 427.323.110.000
- Dividend rate 0%
- Dividend payment amount 0
. Eﬁgiﬁﬁng prc?ﬁt carried forward to the (=3-6)
g yeat 11.042.561.982

Article 6. Remuneration settlement of the Board of Directors, Board of

(Approval rate: ...... % of voting shares attending)

Supervisors in 2024 and plan for 2025



Approval of remuneration settlement of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors
in 2024 and plan for 2025:

1. Remuneration of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors in 2024
Total remuneration is 276,000,000 VND. Specific levels are as follows:

- Remuneration of members of the Board of Directors: 4 million VND/month;
- Remuneration of Head of Board of Supervisors: 3 million VND/month;

- Remuneration of members of Board of Directors: 2 million VND/month;

2. Remuneration plan of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors in 2025

Remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors is linked to
realized profits. When the realized profit is equal to the annual planned profit (plan
completion coefficient K=1), the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors is as follows:

Order Title Remuneration
(d/month)
1 | Non-professional Board Member 4.000.000
B 2 Headwéf Supervisory Board | | : 3.000.066
3 ‘Member of Supervisory Board | | 2.000.000

The Board of Directors will base on the annual business results of the unit as a basis for
assessing the plan completion coefficient (K) and propose an appropriate final
remuneration level.

Remuneration is paid and finalized according to the regulations of the Unit and the law.
Applicable period: from January 1, 2025.

(approval rate: ...... number of voting shares attending)
Article 7. Selection of the 2025 audit unit

Approve the list of audit units and authorize the Board of Directors to select one of the
following companies to audit the 2025 Financial Statements:

1. UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

2. A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

3. RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.
(approval rate: ..... % of voting shares attending)

Article 8. Approval of the draft construction contracts between Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company and Song Da Corporation (shareholders are organizations owning more than
10% of the total common shares of the company) with a value greater than 35% of the total
asset value of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company recorded in the most recent financial report
(at the time of signing) as proposed by the Board of Directors of Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company in the report No. /TTr-HDPQT dated................. :

(approval rate: ...... % of voting shares attending)
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Article 9. Implementation provisions

The members of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, the General Director,
Deputy General Director and heads of functional departments of the Company, according
to their functions and duties, are responsible for implementing this Resolution./,

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As per Article 8; DIRECTORS

- Subsidiaries and affiliated units, CHAIRMAN

- Information disclosure person (for

publication);

- VT, Secretary. )
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SONG DA 10

VOTING CARDS

AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS

Voting code: ........c

Full name of Shareholder/shareholder representatives.........

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Number of authorized shares:

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Total number of voting shares ........ T ——— .

Ha Noi, Month, date, 2025
SHAREHOLDERS/SHAREHOLDERS'
REPRESENTATIVES
(Sign, full name)




%I}f?ﬂpﬁ:lotl OINT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
STOCK CONIRPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

cONG TY N .
o6 pHAN ‘ Hanoi, Month, date, 2025

SONG DA 10 /5

VOTING BALLOT

7 CiEy S 025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
SharehOLder NAMIE v cvveverreresserre e s e Shareholder code:....ccoovvvunne
Full name of shareholder representative: .........

Number of votes (equal to number of shares OWNEA): +evvre e s

Voting opinion (check "X" in the box to the right of the opinion):

1. Production and business plan 2025

Tén thanh , Disapprove l No comments
2. Audited financial statements for 2024
Approved | Disapprove No comments

3. Board of Directors Report

Approved Disapprove No comments

4. Report of the Board of Supervisors

O 0O 0L

Approved Disapprove . No comments
5, Profit distribution plan 2024
Approved l | Disapprove & No comments

6. Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2024 and plan
for 2025

Approved Disapprove \:l No comments k
7. Selecting an Auditor 2025

Approved Disapprove No comments l

8. Approve the draft construction contracts between Song Da 10 Joint Stock
Company and Song Da Corporation with a value greater than 35% of the total asset

value of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company recorded in the most recent financial report
(at the time of signing).

Approved Disapprove No comments D

SHAREHOLDER/SHAREHOLDER
REPRESENTATIVE
(Sign, full name)




SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom — Happiness
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/ GONG 1y ATNTHORIZATION/CONFIRMATION OF ATTENDANCE
k" 2026 Amdual|Géneral Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company
o\ SONG DA 10 /=
‘7\ o

Board of Directors of Song Da 10 Joint Stock Company

W ALY
Sh tﬁﬁq@@gj@a s e i e e s S G e 4 SRS E SR B e s b RS S R

QHATEOIABE COME: «evvvsvsenrcnrrisssiesnsesonsrrnsmessnisnsrn e s sebsteshinnes st e
ID card/passport/business registration MUITIBEES «evvveivevnsensenssnscrsnnsnnesasssssersanmsssons
Date of ISSUE: «ovovsvvasesssmone e PlaCE OF ISSUET +veevrensennerereuruarrsnranssnaans s aesasraenes

Number of shares owned: .....ccovevrvviiiiiiiiiinn shares.

Confirm attendance at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Song Da 10 Joint
Stock Company as follows:

1. Attend in person (tick X in the blank box): L]

2. Authorize another person to attend and exercise shareholder rights with all owned shares:

- Authorized party:

...................................................................................

- ID card/Passport number:

.........................................................................

o A AREURE v vivews sunncns wmpmes PlACE OF 1SS v vennetirrearnersarrenisarnraansaranaeannans
.......... , date ...... month ..... year 2025
AUTHORIZED PARTY SHAREHOLDER/SHAREHOLDER
(if any; sign, full name) REPRESENTATIVE

(sign, full name, seal if organization)

Shareholders may use other forms of Power of Attorney but must meet the legal requirements
for authorization.
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